
                                  UNITED STATES
                       SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
                             Washington D. C. 20549

                                   FORM 10-QSB

(X) Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and
                             Exchange Act of 1934.

               For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003.

( ) Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act for
           the transition period from ____________ to ____________ .

                        Commission File Number: 333-72097

                                NeoGenomics, Inc.
               (Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)

         Nevada                                        74-2897368
(State or other jurisdiction of            (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

             12701 Commonwealth Drive, Suite 9, Fort Myers, FL 33913

                    (Address of principal executive offices)

                                 (239) 768-0600

              (Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Check whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days.

                                 YES (X) NO ( )

State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common
equity, as of October 31, 2003.

                                   18,449,416

Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format:

                                 YES ( ) NO (X)

                                       1

                                NeoGenomics, Inc.

                              INDEX TO FORM 10-QSB

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)



        Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2003.................. 4

        Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine
        months ended September 30, 2003 and the three and nine months
        ended September 30, 2002............................................. 5

        Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended
        September 30, 2003 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002...... 6

        Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements........................... 7

        Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Item 2. Results of Operations (including cautionary statement)............... 10

Item 3. Controls and Procedures                                               15

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.................................................... 16
Item 2. Changes in Securities................................................ 16
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities...................................... 16
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders................ 16
Item 5. Other Information.................................................... 16
Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K..................................... 16

Signatures                                                                    17

                                       2

                                     PART I

                           FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

        This Form 10-QSB, press releases and certain information provided
periodically in writing or orally by our officers or our agents contain
statements which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act, as amended; Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
The words "may", "would", "could", "will", "expect", "estimate", "anticipate",
"believe", "intend", "plan", "goal", and similar expressions and variations
thereof are intended to specifically identify forward-looking statements. These
statements appear in a number of places in this Form 10-QSB and include all
statements that are not statements of historical fact regarding the intent,
belief or current expectations of us, our directors or our officers, with
respect to, among other things: (i) our liquidity and capital resources; (ii)
our financing opportunities and plans; (iii) trends affecting our future
financial condition or results of operations; (iv) our growth strategy and
operating strategy; and (v) the declaration and payment of dividends.

        Investors and prospective investors are cautioned that any such
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors. The factors that might cause such differences include, among others,
the following: (i) we have incurred significant losses since our inception, and
have experienced and continue to experience negative operating margins and
negative cash flows from operations (see Note B to the financial statements);
(ii) any material inability of us to successfully internally develop our
products; (iii) any adverse effect or limitations caused by Governmental
regulations; (iv) any adverse effect on our cash flow or on our ability to
obtain acceptable financing in connection with our growth plans; (v) any
increased competition in our business; (vi) any inability of us to successfully
conduct our business in new markets; and (vii) other risks including those
identified in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise the forward looking
statements made in this Form 10-QSB to reflect events or circumstances after the



date of this Form 10-QSB or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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                                NeoGenomics, Inc.

                        CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF
                               September 30, 2003
                                   (unaudited)
________________________________________________________________________________

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
 Cash                                                    $     39,742
 Accounts receivable (net of allowance for
  doubtful accounts of $10,835)                                48,870
 Inventory                                                     13,539
 Other current assets                                           7,315 
    Total current assets                                      109,466

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (net of accumulated
 depreciation of $75,195)                                     374,662 

TOTAL                                                    $    484,128
                                                         =============

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
 Accounts payable                                        $     56,483
 Deferred revenue                                             100,000
 Accrued and other liabilities                                 57,734 
   Total current liabilities                                  214,217

LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
 Due to affiliates                                            493,666 

   Total Liabilities                                          707,883 

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:
 Common stock, $.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares
    authorized; 18,449,416 shares issued and
    outstanding                                                18,449
 Additional paid-in capital                                 8,818,002
 Deficit accumulated during the development stage          (8,668,490)
 Deficit                                                     (391,716)
   Total stockholders' deficit                               (223,755)

TOTAL                                                    $    484,128
                                                         =============
________________________________________________________________________________

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                                NeoGenomics, Inc.

                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
                                   (unaudited)



_______________________________________________________________________________________________

                                   For the         For the        For the        For the
                                 Nine-Months     Nine-Months    Three-Months   Three-Months
                                    Ended           Ended          Ended          Ended
                                Sept 30, 2003   Sept 30, 2002  Sept 30, 2003  Sept 30, 2002

REVENUE                          $   233,418    $    36,353    $    90,240    $   27,869

COST OF REVENUE                      335,634        136,762        127,418        61,033 

GROSS (DEFICIT) PROFIT              (102,216)      (100,409)       (37,178)      (33,164)

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Stock based compensation                   -      1,535,748              -       491,916
General and administrative           263,730        412,522         88,390       206,207
Interest expense                      25,769          4,608         12,546           911 
   Total operating expenses          289,499      1,952,878        100,936       699,034 

NET INCOME (LOSS)                $  (391,715)   $(2,053,287)   $  (138,114)   $ (732,198)
                                 ============   ============   ============   ===========

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE -
Basic and Diluted                $     (0.03)   $     (0.50)   $     (0.01)   $    (0.17)
                                 ============   ============   ============   ===========

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER
 OF SHARES OUTSTANDING -
 Basic and Diluted                13,015,319      4,138,064     18,449,416     4,287,841
                                 ============   ============   ============   ===========
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                                NeoGenomics, Inc.

                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                                   (unaudited)
________________________________________________________________________________________

                                                        For the            For the
                                                      Nine-Months        Nine-Months
                                                         Ended              Ended
                                                     Sept 30, 2003      Sept 30, 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net loss                                             $ (391,715)       $(2,053,287)
 Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
  provided by(used in) operating activities:
   Depreciation                                           36,831             31,504
   Amortization of deferred stock compensation                 -          1,475,748
   Stock-based compensation and consulting                     -            176,769
   Provision for bad debts                                12,299                710
   Non-cash expenses                                      30,346              2,075

 Changes in assets and liabilities, net:
  (Increase) decrease in accounts receivables,
    net of write-offs                                    (21,088)           (31,592)
  (Increase) decrease in inventory                         5,767            (16,347)
  (Increase) decrease in pre-paid expenses                (7,315)                 -
  (Increase) decrease in other receivables                 2,000                  -
  (Increase) decrease in deposits                          3,916             (2,616)
  Increase (decrease) in due to bank                     (13,518)                 -
  Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues                     -                  -
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
    other liabilities                                    (54,428)           126,671 



 NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES    (396,905)          (290,365)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES-
  Purchases of property and equipment                    (28,958)          (338,817)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Advances from affiliates, net                          351,334            575,529
  Issuances of common stock, net of transaction
      expenses                                           114,271                  - 

   NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES             465,605            575,529 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS      39,742            (53,653)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD                 -             77,216 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD              $   39,742        $    23,563
                                                      ===========       ============

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

   Interest paid                                      $    3,695        $       643
                                                      ===========       ============
   Income taxes paid                                  $        -        $         -
                                                      ===========       ============
________________________________________________________________________________________

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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                                NeoGenomics, Inc.

                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                  (Unaudited)
________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

NeoGenomics, Inc. ("NEO") was incorporated under the laws of the state of
Florida on June 1, 2001 and on November 14, 2001 agreed to be acquired by
American Communications Enterprises, Inc., a Nevada corporation ("ACE"). As a
result of the acquisition, NEO became the operating subsidiary of ACE. ACE was
formed in 1998 and succeeded to NEO's name on January 3, 2002 (collectively NEO
and ACE are referred to as "NeoGenomics", the "Company", "we", "us", or "our"
throughout this Form 10-QSB).

On April 4, 2003, we amended our articles of incorporation to (1) effect a
one-for-100 reverse split of our common stock, (2) reduce the authorized number
of common shares from 500,000,000 to 100,000,000, and (3) authorize 10,000,000
shares of preferred stock for future issuance, with such terms, restrictions and
limitations as may be established by the Board of Directors.

As a result of the above, all references to the number of shares and par value
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have
been adjusted to reflect the April 2003 reverse stock split as though it had
been completed as of June 1, 2001.

Basis of Presentation

Our accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 10-QSB
and Rule 10-1 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC"). Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements do not include all
of the footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal
and recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have



been included. Operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2003
are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ended December 31, 2003. The accompanying consolidated financial statements and
the notes thereto should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002 contained in
our Form 10-KSB.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEO
and ACE. All significant intercompany accounts and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

Net revenues are recognized in the period when tests are performed and consist
primarily of net patient revenues that are recorded based on established billing
rates less estimated discounts for contractual allowances principally for
patients covered by Medicare, Medicaid and managed care and other health plans.
These revenues also are subject to review and possible audit by the payers. We
believe that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments that may
result from final determination of amounts earned under all the above
arrangements. There are no known material claims, disputes or unsettled matters
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with any payers that are not adequately provided for in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We provide for accounts receivable that could become uncollectible in the future
by establishing an allowance to reduce the carrying value of such receivables to
their estimated net realizable value. We estimate this allowance based on the
aging of our accounts receivable and our historical collection experience for
each type of payer.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. The reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period may be affected by the estimates and assumptions we are
required to make. Estimates that are critical to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements include estimates related to contractual adjustments, and
the allowance for doubtful accounts. It is at least reasonably possible that our
estimates could change in the near term with respect to these matters.

NOTE B - GOING CONCERN

Our consolidated financial statements were prepared using accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to a going
concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of
liabilities in the normal course of business. We have incurred significant
losses since our inception, and have experienced and continue to experience
negative operating margins and negative cash flows from operations. In addition,
we expect to have ongoing requirements for substantial additional capital
investment to implement our business plan. Since our inception, our operations
have been funded through private equity and debt, and we expect to continue to
seek additional funding through private or public equity and debt. As discussed
in Note D, in connection with this matter, in April 2003, we secured a
commitment from a related entity to provide us with $1.5 million of debt
financing in the form of a revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"). In
addition, we recently moved to a larger laboratory facility and are still in the



process of ramping up our operations in order to perform a greater number of
cytogenetics and molecular biology tests, which we expect will lead to an
increase in revenues. However, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in these efforts, or that the Credit Facility will be adequate to
meet our needs. These factors, among others, indicate that we may be unable to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to
the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts
and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should we be unable to
continue as a going concern.

NOTE C - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the establishment of the Credit Facility, we occasionally borrowed
funds from the Naples Women's Center ("NWC"), a company owned by our president,
to meet our short-term cash needs. In total, approximately $117,300 was advanced
to us during 2002 with a stated interest rate of 8% and was due upon demand.
Approximately half of this amount was repaid in April 2003 in connection with

                                       8

the financing transaction described in Note D, and we executed an agreement that
called for the remaining half to be repaid in 18 months with accrued interest at
a stated rate of 8.0% per annum.

In addition, in order to meet short term cash needs during late 2002 and early
2003 prior to the establishment of the Credit Facility, we borrowed
approximately $177,000 from three individuals who are affiliates of Medical
Venture Partners, LLC ("Medical Venture Partners"), a venture capital firm with
whom we were negotiating a financing transaction (see Note D). These amounts,
plus accrued interest at a stated interest rate of 8% per annum, were repaid in
April 2003 in connection with the consummation of the financing transaction
described in Note D.

NOTE D - FINANCING TRANSACTION

On April 15, 2003, we entered into equity and debt financing agreements with
Medical Venture Partners and its principals. Under the terms of the equity
agreements, affiliates of Medical Venture Partners purchased 13,927,062 shares
of our common stock for $0.01/share which resulted in net proceeds to the
company of $114,271 after deducting transaction expenses of approximately
$25,000. As a result of these equity transactions, the Company experienced a
change of control and Medical Venture Partners and its affiliates, in the
aggregate, own approximately 75% of our outstanding common stock. Under the
terms of the debt financing agreements, MVP 3, LP, a partnership controlled by
Medical Venture Partners, agreed to make available up to $1.5 million of debt
financing in the form of a revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility").

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, NEO will be able to borrow up to 80% of
"eligible" accounts receivable, 50% of the net property, plant and equipment
balance, and up to $500,000 on an unsecured basis. As a condition to these
transactions, the Company, our President, MVP 3 LP and the principals of Medical
Venture Partners entered into a shareholders agreement that provides that MVP 3,
LP will have the right to appoint up to four of seven of our directors. We also
entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with MVP 3 LP and the principals of
Medical Venture Partners granting them certain demand and piggyback registration
rights.

At the time of the closing of this transaction, we entered into a one year
employment agreement with our President. The agreement, which renews
automatically for an unlimited number of terms of one year (unless a "Notice of
Termination" is delivered), provides for a base salary equal to 20% of the net
cash provided by operations of NEO (subject to a monthly cap of $20,000). In



addition, the agreement provides for a bonus of 10% of any amount by which our
quarterly net revenues exceed certain targets as established by our Board of
Directors.

NOTE E - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 14, 2003, shareholders controlling approximately 89% of the Company's
common stock determined the following by way of written consent:

o To elect John E. Elliott, Steven C. Jones and Lawrence R. Kuhnert to the
  Company's Board of Directors to hold office until the next annual meeting
  of shareholders;
o To re-elect Michael T. Dent, M.D. and Kevin J. Lindheim as Directors to
  hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders; and
o To approve the Company's 2003 Equity Incentive Plan.
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On October 14, 2003, during a meeting of the Company's Board of Directors, the
Company adopted the following resolutions, among others:

o Thomas H. White was elected to the position of Chief Executive Officer,
  effective October 20, 2003, and an employment agreement with Mr. White was
  approved that specifies an annual salary for Mr. White of $100,000; and
o Michael T. Dent was elected to the position of Chairman of the Board; and
o The Company's 2004 Equity Incentive Plan was approved and adopted, and
  2,000,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance of stock awards
  thereunder (together with a formula for increasing that amount as
  necessary).
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Item 2. - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

NeoGenomics, Inc. operates a medical testing laboratory and research facility
based in Fort Myers, Florida that is targeting the rapidly growing genetic and
molecular testing segment of the medical laboratory market. Our common stock is
listed on the NASDAQ Bulletin Board (OTCBB) under the symbol "NGNM." Our
business plan features two concurrent objectives:

        1. Development of a clinical laboratory to offer routine cytogenetics and
           molecular biology testing services; and

        2. Development of a research laboratory to offer sponsored research services
           to other companies that are seeking to develop genomic products that will
           determine the genetic basis for female and neonatal diseases, cancers and
           other forms of disease (See "Research and Development").

The vision of NeoGenomics is to merge a high-end genetic and molecular testing
laboratory with ongoing research activities to help bridge the gap between
clinical medicine and genomic research. We believe that this combination will
allow the Company to speed the process of discovery and innovation and develop
new advanced testing methods to identify the genetic and molecular causes of
disease. Over the last 2-3 years, advances in technology and genetic research,
including the complete sequencing of the human genome, have made possible a
whole new set of tools to diagnose and treat diseases. This has opened up a vast
opportunity for laboratory companies that are positioned to address this growing



market segment.

The medical testing laboratory market can be broken down into three primary
segments:

        o clinical lab testing,
        o anatomic pathology testing, and
        o genetic/molecular testing.

Clinical labs typically are engaged in high volume, high automation tests on
blood and urine. Clinical lab tests often involve testing of a less urgent
nature, for example, cholesterol testing and testing associated with routine
physical exams. This type of testing yields relatively low average revenue per
test. Anatomic pathology ("AP") testing involves evaluation of tissue, as in
surgical pathology, or cells as in cytopathology. AP testing typically seeks to
answer the question: is it cancer? The most widely known AP tests are Pap
smears, skin biopsies, and tissue biopsies. AP tests are typically more labor
and technology intensive than clinical lab tests and thus typically have higher
average revenue per test than clinical lab tests.

We believe genetic/molecular testing is the newest and fastest growing subset of
the laboratory market. Genetic testing or "cytogenetics" involves analyzing
chromosomes taken from the nucleus of cells for abnormalities in a process
called karyotyping. A karyotype evaluates the entire 46 human chromosomes by
number, and banding patterns to identify abnormalities associated with diseases.
Examples of cytogenetics testing include amniocentesis testing of pregnant women
to screen for genetic anomalies such as Down's syndrome in a fetus and bone
marrow testing to screen for types of leukemia. Molecular biology involves
testing for even more specific causes of diseases based on very small
alterations in cellular biology and DNA. Examples of common molecular biology
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testing include screening for paternity, cystic fibrosis or Tay-Sachs disease.
Both cytogenetics and molecular biology have become important and accurate
diagnostic tools over the last five years and new tests are being developed
rapidly, thus this market segment is expanding rapidly. Genetic/molecular
testing requires very specialized equipment and credentialed individuals
(typically PhD level) to certify the results. As a result of the sophistication
involved in performing these tests, we believe that genetic/molecular testing
typically has the highest average revenue/test of the medical laboratory sub
segments.

Comparison of the Medical Testing Laboratory Market Segments:
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

           Attributes                      Clinical               Anatomic Pathology           Genetic/Molecular
      Testing Performed On               Blood, Urine                Tissue/cells                Chromosomes/

             Volume                          High                        Low                          Low
      Physician Involvement                   Low                 High - Pathologist                  Low
   Malpractice Insur. Required                Low                        High                         Low
    Other Professionals Req.                 None                        None                  Cyto Geneticist/
                                                                                             Molecular Geneticist
       Level of Automation                   High                        None                      Moderate
      Diagnostic in Nature                Usually Not                    Yes                          Yes
    Types of Diseases Tested             Many Possible             Primarily Cancer             Rapidly Growing
     Estimated Revenue/Test              $5 - $35/Test             $25 - $100/Test             $200 - $800/Test
    Estimated Size of Market           $25 - $30 Billion         $6.0 - $7.0 Billion          $1.0 - $2.0 Billion
 Estimated Annual Growth Rate of
             Market                        4.0 -5.0%                  6.0 - 7.0%                  25.0 - 40+%
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Source: Research Analysts and Company Estimates

We compete in the marketplace based on the quality and accuracy of our test
results, our turn-around times and our ability to provide after-test support to
those physicians requesting consultation. We believe our average three day



turn-around times on oncology-related cytogenetics tests is among the best in
the industry and is helping to increase the usage patterns of cytogenetics tests
by our referring oncologists and hematopathologists. Based on anecdotal
information, we believe that most competing cytogenetics labs typically have
7-21 day turn-around times on average. Traditionally, longer turn-around times
for cytogenetics tests have resulted in fewer tests being ordered since there is
an increased chance that the test results will not be returned within an
acceptable diagnostic window when other adjunctive diagnostic test results are
available. We believe our turn-around times are resulting in our referring
physicians requesting more of our testing services in order to augment or
confirm other diagnostic tests, thereby giving us a significant competitive
advantage in marketing our services against those of other competing
laboratories.

The cytogenetics and molecular biology testing markets in general are seasonal
and the volumes of such tests tend to decline somewhat in the summer months as
referring physicians and their patients are vacationing. In southern Florida,
currently our primary referral market for lab tests, this seasonality is further
exacerbated because a meaningful percentage of the population returns to homes
in the Northern U.S. to avoid the hot summer months. We estimate that our growth
rates during the second and third quarter of each year will be somewhat impacted
by these seasonality factors.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003,
included with this Form 10-QSB. Readers are also referred to the cautionary
statement, which addresses forward-looking statements made by us.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our critical accounting policies, including the assumptions and judgments
underlying them, are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 included in our Form 10-KSB. We have
consistently applied these policies in all material respects. At this stage of
our development, these policies primarily address matters of revenue and expense
recognition. Management does not believe that our operations to date have
involved uncertainty of accounting treatment, subjective judgment, or estimates,
to any significant degree.

Results of Operations for the Three Months ended September 30, 2003 as Compared
to the Three Months ended September 30, 2002

During the three months ended September 30, 2003, we generated revenues and
costs of revenues of approximately $90,000 and $127,000, respectively, versus
revenues and costs of revenues of approximately $28,000 and $61,000,
respectively for the three months ended September 30, 2002. This resulted in a
gross margin deficit of approximately $37,000 for the three months ended
September 30, 2003, which is a 12% increase over the gross margin deficit of
$33,000 reported for the three months ended September 30, 2002. This change is
primarily attributable to costs associated with moving to a new laboratory
facility in August 2003 and costs of additional laboratory personnel required to
handle the substantial increase in testing volumes versus the three months ended
September 30, 2002. We believe our gross margin will continue to improve as we
perform more tests. During the most recent quarter, we further increased our
penetration into existing referral sources for cytogentics tests and added a
number of new referral sources, which helped to offset the historical reduction
in testing volumes attributable to seasonality issues associated with our
geographic market.

Our operating expenses for the most recent quarter were approximately $101,000,
which was an 86% reduction from the approximately $699,000 of operating expenses
reported for the three months ended September 30, 2002. This reduction was
primarily due to the elimination of certain stock based compensation as well as
other cost-savings initiatives. Interest expense for the most recent quarter was
approximately $13,000, compared to approximately $1,000 of interest reported for



the three months ended September 30, 2002. Interest expense is primarily
comprised of interest payable on advances under our Credit Facility as well as
interest payable on advances from other related parties and the increase is
primarily a result of our increased borrowing.

Results of Operations for the Nine Months ended September 30, 2003 as Compared
to the Nine Months ended September 30, 2002

During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, we generated revenues and costs
of revenues of approximately $233,000 and $336,000, respectively, versus
revenues and costs of revenues of approximately $36,000 and $137,000,
respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. This resulted in a
gross margin deficit of approximately $102,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2003, which is a 2% increase over the gross margin deficit of
approximately $100,000 reported for the three months ended September 30, 2002.
Since we did not begin laboratory testing operations until May 2002, revenue and
gross margin comparisons with the nine months ended September 30, 2002 are not
relevant.

Our operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 were
approximately $289,000, which was an 85% reduction from the approximately
$1,953,000 of operating expenses reported for the nine months ended September
30, 2002. This reduction was primarily due to the elimination of certain stock
based compensation as well as other cost-savings initiatives. Interest expense
for the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was approximately $26,000, compared
to approximately $5,000 of interest reported for the nine months ended September
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30, 2002. Interest expense is primarily comprised of interest payable on
advances under our Credit Facility as well as interest payable on advances from
other related parties and the increase is primarily a result of our increased
borrowing.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, our operating activities used
approximately $397,000 in cash. This amount primarily represented cash used to
pay general and administrative expenses associated with our operations. We also
spent approximately $29,000 on new equipment and leasehold improvements. We were
able to finance operations and equipment purchases primarily through the sale of
equity securities to affiliates and net advances under our Credit Facility,
which together provided approximately $466,000 over the nine month period ended
September 30, 2003. At September 30, 2003, we had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately $40,000.

On April 15, 2003, we entered into equity and debt financing agreements with
Medical Venture Partners and its principals. Under the terms of the equity
agreements, affiliates of Medical Venture Partners purchased 13,927,062 shares
of our common stock for $0.01 per share which resulted in net proceeds to the
company of $114,271 after deducting transaction expenses of approximately
$25,000. As a result of these equity transactions, the Company experienced a
change of control and Medical Venture Partners and its affiliates, in the
aggregate, own approximately 75% of our outstanding common stock. Under the
terms of the debt financing agreements, MVP 3, LP, a partnership controlled by
Medical Venture Partners, agreed to make available up to $1.5 million of debt
financing in the form of a revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility").

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, our advances are limited, at any given
time, to the sum of i) 50% of our net property, plant and equipment; (ii) 80% of
our accounts receivable that are less than 90 days old; and (iii) $500,000 that
is not tied to any specific collateral. Interest under the revolving credit
agreement is payable monthly at the prime rate plus 8.0%. As of September 30,
2003, we had approximately $435,000 in principal amount outstanding under the
Credit Facility.

Over the next twelve months, we plan to finance our operations through
borrowings under the Credit Facility with MVP 3. While we believe that, based on
our current business plan, the Credit Facility will be sufficient to finance our



operations over the next twelve months, advances under this Credit Facility are
limited, at any given time, based on a formula contained in the loan agreement.
There can be no assurance that we will be eligible to obtain all of our working
capital funding needs from MVP 3, LP or another source. If we are unable to
obtain such funding, we will be required to curtail or discontinue operations.

Capital Expenditures

We currently forecast capital expenditures for the coming year in order to
execute on our business plan. We plan to fund these expenditures through
borrowings under our Credit Facility with MVP 3, LP and through traditional
lease financing from equipment lessors. There can be no assurance that we will
be eligible to obtain all of our capital equipment funding needs from MVP 3, LP
or another source. If we are unable to obtain such funding, we will be required
to curtail our equipment purchases, which may have an impact on our ability to
generate revenues.

Staffing

We plan to increase our work force. Currently, we have six full-time and two
part-time employees. We plan to add additional laboratory technicians and
research scientists to assist us in handling a greater volume of tests and to
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perform sponsored research projects. In addition, we intend to continue building
our sales force in an effort to sustain our sales growth, as well as add
personnel in management, accounting, and administrative functions.

Item 3 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the specified time periods. As of the end of the period covered
by this report, our Chief Executive and Principle Financial Officer evaluated
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the
evaluation, which disclosed no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses,
our Chief Executive and Principle Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period
covered by this report. There were no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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                          PART II. - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

    NONE

Item 2. Changes in Securities

On October 14, 2003, we granted options to purchase 1,000,000 shares of common
stock to certain officers and directors of the Company, pursuant to a board
resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities



    NONE

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders

    NONE

Item 5. Other Information

    NONE

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)      Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-QSB.

      Exhibit
      Number       Description

      3.2.1        Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company, dated October 14, 2003.

      10.24        The NeoGenomics 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.

      10.25        Employment Agreement between NeoGenomics, Inc and Thomas H. White,
                   dated October 15, 2003.

      31.1         Certification of NeoGenomics,  Inc. Chief Executive and Principal
                   Financial  Officer,  Thomas H. White, pursuant to Section 302 of
                   the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

      32.1         Certification of NeoGenomics,  Inc. Chief Executive and Principal
                   Financial  Officer,  Thomas H. White, pursuant to Section 906
                   of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

    No reports on Form 8-K were filed with the SEC during the period covered by this report.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

                                               NEOGENOMICS, INC.

    Date:   November 14, 2003                  /s/ Thomas H. White
                                                   Thomas H. White
                                                   Chief Executive and
                                                   Principle Financial Officer



                               RESTATED BYLAWS OF

                                NEOGENOMICS, INC.

                              A Nevada Corporation

                    As Amended and Restated October 14, 2003

                                    ARTICLE I

                             STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Section 1.1 Place of Meetings.

        All meetings of the stockholders shall be held at the Corporation's
corporate headquarters, or at any other place, within or without the State of
Nevada, or by means of any electronic or other medium of communication, as the
Board may designate for that purpose from time to time.

Section 1.2 Annual Meetings.

        An annual meeting of the stockholders shall be held not later than 210 days
after the close of each fiscal year, on the date and at the time set by the
Board, at which time the stockholders shall elect, by the greatest number of
affirmative votes cast, the directors to be elected at the meeting, consider
reports of the affairs of the Corporation and transact such other business as
properly may be brought before the meeting.

Section 1.3 Special Meetings.

        Special meetings of the stockholders, for any purpose or purposes
whatsoever, may be called at any time by the Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer or the Board.

Section 1.4 Notice of Meetings.

        (a) Notice of each meeting of stockholders, whether annual or special,
shall be given at least 10 and not more than 60 days prior to the date thereof
by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary causing to be delivered to each
stockholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting a written notice stating
the time and place of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the
meeting is called. Such notice shall be signed by the Chief Executive Officer,
the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary and shall be (a) mailed postage prepaid
to a stockholder at the stockholder's address as it appears on the stock books
of the Corporation, or (b) delivered to a stockholder by any other method of
delivery permitted at such time by Nevada and federal law and by any exchange on
which the Corporation's shares shall be listed at such time. If any stockholder
has failed to supply an address or otherwise specify an alternative method of
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delivery that is permitted by (b) above, notice shall be deemed to have been
given if mailed to the address of the Corporation's corporate headquarters or
published at least once in a newspaper having general circulation in the county
in which the Corporation's corporate headquarters is located.

        (b) It shall not be necessary to give any notice of the adjournment of any
meeting, or the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting, other than by
announcement at the meeting at which such adjournment is taken; provided,
however, that when a meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting.

Section 1.5 Consent by Stockholders.



        Any action that may be taken at any meeting of the stockholders, except the
removal of directors, may be taken without a meeting if authorized by a writing
signed by a majority of the shares entitled to vote on the action.

Section 1.6 Quorum.

        (a) The presence in person or by proxy of the persons entitled to vote a
majority of the Corporation's voting shares at any meeting constitutes a quorum
for the transaction of business. Shares shall not be counted in determining the
number of shares represented or required for a quorum or in any vote at a
meeting if the voting of them at the meeting has been enjoined or for any reason
they cannot be lawfully voted at the meeting.

        (b) The stockholders present at a duly called or held meeting at which a
quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding
the withdrawal of stockholders leaving less than a quorum.

        (c) In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the shares present in person
or by proxy and entitled to vote may adjourn any meeting from time to time until
a quorum shall be present in person or by proxy.

Section 1.7 Voting Rights.

        (a) At each meeting of the stockholders, each stockholder of record of the
Corporation shall be entitled to one vote for each share of stock standing in
the stockholder's name on the books of the Corporation. Except as otherwise
provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation (as the same has been or may be
amended from time to time, the "Articles") or these Bylaws, if a quorum is
present the majority of votes cast in person or by proxy shall be binding upon
all stockholders of the Corporation.

        (b) The Board shall designate a day not more than 60 days prior to any
meeting of the stockholders as the record date for determining which
stockholders are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meetings.
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Section 1.8 Proxies.

        Every stockholder entitled to vote may do so either in person or by
written, electronic, telephonic or other proxy executed in accordance with the
provisions of Section 78.355 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Any written consent
must be signed by the stockholder.

Section 1.9 Manner of Conducting Meetings.

        To the extent not in conflict with Nevada law, the Articles or these
Bylaws, meetings of stockholders shall be conducted pursuant to such rules as
may be adopted by the Chairman, a Chief Executive Officer presiding at the
meeting.

Section 1.10. Nature of Business at Meetings of Stockholders.

        (a) No business may be transacted at any annual meeting of stockholders, or
at any special meeting of stockholders, other than business that is (a)
specified in the notice of meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at
the direction of the Board (or any duly authorized committee thereof), or the
Chief Executive Officer, (b) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by or
at the direction of the Board (or any duly authorized committee thereof), the
Chairman, or the Chief Executive Officer, (c) otherwise properly brought before
the meeting by any stockholder of the Corporation (i) who is a stockholder of
record on the date of the giving of the notice provided for in this Section 1.10
and on the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to vote at
such meeting and (ii) who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this
Section 1.10.

        (b) In addition to any other applicable requirements, for business to be



properly brought by a stockholder before an annual meeting, or at any special
meeting, of stockholders, such stockholder must have given timely notice thereof
in proper written form to the Secretary of the Corporation.

        (c) To be timely, a stockholder's notice to the Secretary must be delivered
to or mailed and received at the Corporation's corporate headquarters (a) in the
case of an annual meeting, not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to
the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of
stockholders; provided, however, that in the event that the annual meeting is
called for a date that is not within 30 days before or after such anniversary
date, notice by the stockholder in order to be timely must be so received not
later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which
notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed or public disclosure of the
date of the annual meeting was made, whichever first occurs; and (b) in the case
of a special meeting of stockholders, not later than the close of business on
the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the special
meeting was mailed or public disclosure of the date of the special meeting was
made, whichever first occurs.

        (d) To be in proper written form, a stockholder's notice to the Secretary
must set forth as to each matter such stockholder proposes to bring before the
annual meeting, or at any special meeting, of stockholders (a) a brief
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description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting and the
reasons for conducting such business at the meeting, (b) the name and record
address of such stockholder, (c) the class or series and number of shares of
capital stock of the Corporation which are owned beneficially or of record by
such stockholder, (d) a description of all arrangements or understandings
between such stockholder and any other person or persons (including their names)
in connection with the proposal of such business by such stockholder and any
material interest of such stockholder in such business and (e) a representation
that such stockholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to
bring such business before the meeting.

        (e) No business shall be conducted at the annual meeting, or at any special
meeting, of stockholders except business brought before the meeting in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 1.10. If the chairman
of any meeting determines that business was not properly brought before the
meeting in accordance with the foregoing procedures, the chairman shall declare
to the meeting that the business was not properly brought before the meeting and
such business shall not be transacted.

                                   ARTICLE II
                              DIRECTORS--MANAGEMENT

Section 2.1  Powers.

        Subject to the limitations of Nevada law, the Articles and these Bylaws as
to action to be authorized or approved by the stockholders, all corporate powers
shall be exercised by or under authority of, and the business and affairs of
this Corporation shall be controlled by, the Board.

Section 2.2 Number and Qualification; Change in Number

        (a) Subject to Section 2.2(b), the authorized number of directors of this
Corporation shall be not less than two nor more than seven, with the exact
number to be established from time to time by resolution of the Board. All
directors of this Corporation shall be at least 21 years of age.

        (b) The Board or the stockholders may increase the number of directors at
any time and from time to time; provided, however, that neither the Board nor
the stockholders may ever increase the number of directors by more than one
during any 12-month period, except upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of
the directors, or the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of all
outstanding shares voting together and not by class. This provision may not be
amended except by a like vote.
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Section 2.3 Election.

        Each director's term of office shall begin immediately after election and
shall continue until the next annual stockholders meeting. Directors elected by
the Board or stockholders to fill a vacancy on the Board shall hold office for
the balance of the term to which such director is elected.

Section 2.4. Vacancies.

        (a) Any vacancies in the Board, except vacancies first filled by the
stockholders, may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining directors,
though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. Each director so
elected shall hold office for the balance of the term to which such director is
elected. The power to fill vacancies may not be delegated to any committee
appointed in accordance with these Bylaws.

        (b) The stockholders may at any time elect a director to fill any vacancy
not filled by the directors and may elect the additional director(s) at the
meeting at which an amendment of the Bylaws is voted authorizing an increase in
the number of directors.

        (c) A vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist in case of the death,
permanent and total disability, resignation, retirement or removal of any
director, if the directors or stockholders increase the authorized number of
directors but fail to elect the additional director or directors at a meeting at
which such increase is authorized or at an adjournment thereof, or if the
stockholders fail at any time to elect the full number of authorized directors.

        (d) If the Board accepts the resignation of a director tendered to take
effect at a future time, the Board or the stockholders shall have power to
immediately elect a successor who shall take office when the resignation shall
become effective.

        (e) No reduction of the number of directors shall have the effect of
removing any director prior to the expiration of such director's term of office.

Section 2.5 Removal of Directors.

        Except as provided in any resolution for any class or series of Preferred
Stock, any one or more director(s) may be removed from office, with or without
cause, by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of all the outstanding shares
voting together and not by class.

Section 2.6 Resignations.

        Any director of the Corporation may resign at any time either by oral
tender of resignation at any meeting of the Board or by giving written notice
thereof to the Secretary or the Chief Executive Officer. Such resignation shall
take effect at the time it specifies, and the acceptance of such resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective.
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Section 2.7 Place of Meetings.

        (a) Regular and special meetings of the Board shall be held at the
corporate headquarters of the Corporation or at such other place within or
without the State of Nevada as may be designated for that purpose by the Board.



        (b) Meetings of the Board may be held in person or by means of any
electronic or other medium of communication approved by the Board from time to
time.

Section 2.8 Meeting After Annual Stockholders Meeting.

        The first meeting of the Board held after an annual stockholders meeting
shall be held at such time and place within or without the State of Nevada (a)
as the Chief Executive Officer may announce at the annual stockholders meeting,
or (b) at such time and place as shall be fixed pursuant to notice given under
other provisions of these Bylaws. No other notice of such meeting shall be
necessary.

Section 2.9 Other Regular Meetings.

        (a) Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at such time and place
within or without the State of Nevada as may be agreed upon from time to time by
a majority of the Board.

        (b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.11, no notice need be
provided of regular meetings, except that a written notice shall be given to
each director of the resolution establishing a regular meeting date or dates,
which notice shall set forth the date, time and place of the meeting(s). Except
as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or the notice of the meeting, any and all
business may be transacted at any regular meeting of the Board.

Section 2.10 Special Meetings.

        Special meetings of the Board shall be held whenever called by the Chairman
of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer or two-thirds of the directors. Except
as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or the notice of the meeting, any and all
business may be transacted at any special meeting of the Board.

Section 2.11 Notice; Waiver of Notice.

        Notice of each regular Board meeting not previously approved by the Board
and each special Board meeting shall be (a) mailed by U.S. mail to each director
not later than three days before the day on which the meeting is to be held, (b)
sent to each director by overnight delivery service, telex, facsimile
transmission, telegram, cablegram, radiogram, e-mail, any other electronic
transmission permitted by Nevada law or delivered personally not later than 5:00
p.m. (EST time) on the day before the date of the meeting, or (c) provided to
each director by telephone not later than 5:00 p.m. (EST time) on the day before
the date of the meeting. Any director who attends a regular or special Board
meeting and (x) waives notice by a writing filed with the Secretary, (y) is
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present thereat and asks that his/her oral consent to the notice be entered into
the minutes or (z) takes part in the deliberations thereat without expressly
objecting to the notice thereof in writing or by asking that his/her objection
be entered into the minutes shall be deemed to have waived notice of the meeting
and neither that director nor any other person shall be entitled to challenge
the validity of such meeting.

Section 2.12 Notice of Adjournment.

        Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be
given to absent directors if the time and place is fixed at the meeting
adjourned.

Section 2.13 Quorum.

        A majority of the number of directors as fixed by the Articles or these
Bylaws, or by the Board pursuant to the Articles or these Bylaws, shall be
necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the action
of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a



quorum, when duly assembled, is valid as a corporate act; provided, however,
that a minority of the directors, in the absence of a quorum, may adjourn from
time to time or fill vacant directorships in accordance with Section 2.4 but may
not transact any other business. The directors present at a duly called or held
meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until
adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, leaving less than a
quorum.

Section 2.14 Action by Unanimous Written Consent.

        Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board
may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board shall individually or
collectively consent in writing thereto. Such written consent shall be filed
with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board and shall have the same force
and effect as a unanimous vote of such directors.

Section 2.15 Compensation.

        The Board may pay to directors a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting
of the Board or of a standing or special committee, a stated retainer for
services as a director, a stated fee for serving as a chair of a standing or
special committee and such other compensation, including benefits, as the Board
or any standing committee thereof shall determine from time to time.
Additionally, the directors may be paid their expenses of attendance at each
meeting of the Board or of a standing or special committee.

Section 2.16 Transactions Involving Interests of Directors.

        In the absence of fraud, no contract or other transaction of the
Corporation shall be affected or invalidated by the fact that any of the
directors of the Corporation is interested in any way in, or connected with any
other party to, such contract or transaction or is a party to such contract or
transaction; provided, however, that such contract or transaction satisfies
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Section 78.140 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Each and every person who is or
may become a director of the Corporation hereby is relieved, to the extent
permitted by law, from any liability that might otherwise exist from contracting
in good faith with the Corporation for the benefit of such person or any person
in which such person may be interested in any way or with which such person may
be connected in any way. Any director of the Corporation may vote and act upon
any matter, contract or transaction between the Corporation and any other person
without regard to the fact that such director also is a stockholder, director or
officer of, or has any interest in, such other person; provided, however, that
such director shall disclose any such relationship and/or interest to the Board
prior to a vote and/or action.

                                   ARTICLE III
                                    OFFICERS

Section 3.1 Executive Officers.

        The executive officers of the Corporation shall be a Chief Executive
Officer and/or a President and a Chief Financial Officer and may include,
without limitation, one or more of each of the following: Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Corporate Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Medical
Officer, Senior Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice
President, Vice President, Group and/or Division President and/or Secretary and
Treasurer. Any person may hold two or more offices. Each executive officer of
the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board, may be reclassified by
the Board as a non-executive officer (or as a non-officer) at any time, shall
serve at the pleasure of the Board and shall hold office for one year unless
he/she resigns or is terminated by the Board.

Section 3.2 Appointed Officers: Titles.



        (a) The Chief Executive Officer shall appoint a Secretary and a Treasurer
of the Corporation if those officers have not been elected by the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer (or the Secretary in the case of Assistant Secretaries
or the Treasurer in the case of Assistant Treasurers) also may appoint
additional officers of the Corporation if not previously elected by the Board,
including one or more of each of the following: President, Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Chief Corporate Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Accounting
Officer, Controller, Senior Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President,
Senior Vice President, Vice President, Assistant Secretary, Assistant Treasurer
and/or such other officers as the Chief Executive Officer may deem to be
necessary, desirable or appropriate. Each such appointed officer shall hold such
title at the pleasure of the appointing officer and have such authority and
perform such duties as are provided in these Bylaws, or as the Chief Executive
Officer or the appointing officer may determine from time to time. Any person
appointed under this Section 3.2(a) to serve in any of the foregoing positions
shall be deemed by reason of such appointment or service in such capacity to be
an "officer" of the Corporation.

        (b) The chief executive officer or a person designated by the Chief
Executive Officer also may appoint one or more of each of the following for any
operating region, division, group or corporate staff function of the
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Corporation: President, Chairman, Vice Chairman, Chief Corporate Officer, Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, Controller, Senior Executive Vice
President, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President, Vice President,
Assistant Controller and such other officers as the President may deem to be
necessary, desirable or appropriate. Each such appointed officer shall hold such
title at the pleasure of the Chief Executive Officer and have authority to act
for and perform duties only with respect to the region, division, group or
corporate staff function for which the person is appointed. Any person appointed
under this Section 3.2(b) to serve in any of the foregoing positions shall be
deemed by reason of such appointment or service in such capacity to be an
"officer" of the Corporation.

Section 3.3 Removal and Resignation; No Right to Continued Employment

        (a) Any elected executive officer may be removed at any time by the Board,
either with or without cause. Any appointed officer may be removed from such
position at any time by the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the person
making such appointment or his/her successor, either with or without cause.

        (b) Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary of the Corporation. Any such
resignation shall take effect as of the date of the receipt of such notice, or
at any later time specified therein; provided, however, that such officer may be
removed at any time notwithstanding such resignation. Unless otherwise specified
therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it
effective.

        (c) The fact that an employee has been elected by the Board to serve as an
executive officer or appointed to serve as an officer shall not entitle such
employee to remain an officer or employee of the Corporation.

Section 3.4 Vacancies.

        A vacancy in any office due to death, permanent and total disability,
retirement, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause may be
filled in any manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular elections or
appointments to such office or may not be filled.

Section 3.5 Chairman and Vice Chairman.

        The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board and, in the absence
of the Chief Executive Officer, at all meetings of the stockholders and shall
exercise and perform such other powers and duties as from time to time may be



assigned by the Board. In the absence of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, a Vice Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board and
stockholders and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as from time
to time may be assigned by the Board. A Vice Chairman need not be a member of
the Board.
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Section 3.6 Chief Executive Officer.

        Subject to the oversight of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer shall
have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs of
the Corporation. The Chief Executive Officer shall preside at all meetings of
the stockholders and, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, at all
meetings of the Board. If not a member of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer
shall be an ex officio member of the Executive Committee of the Board and shall
have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office of
chief executive officer of a corporation and such other powers and duties as may
be assigned by the Board.

Section 3.7 President.

        In the absence or disability of the Chief Executive Officer, the President
shall perform all of the duties of the Chief Executive Officer and when so
acting shall have all the powers and be subject to all the restrictions upon the
Chief Executive Officer, including the power to sign all instruments and to take
all actions which the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to perform by the
Board of Directors or the By-Laws. The President shall have the general powers
and duties usually vested in the office of president of a corporation and such
other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Chief Executive Officer or
the Board of Directors.

Section 3.8 Chief Financial Officer

        The Chief Financial Officer shall exercise direction and control of the
financial affairs of the Corporation, including the preparation of the
Corporation's financial statements. The Chief Financial Officer shall have the
general powers and duties usually vested in the office of the chief financial
officer of a corporation and such other powers and duties as may be assigned by
the Chief Executive Officer or the Board.

Section 3.9 Chief Operating Officer.

        Subject to the oversight of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Operating Officer shall exercise direction and control over the day-to-day
operations of the Corporation. In the case of the death or total and permanent
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disability of the Chief Executive Officer and the President(s), the Chief
Operating Officer or Chief Corporate Officer, in order of rank or seniority,
shall perform all of the duties of such officer, and when so acting shall have
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon such officer,
including the power to sign all instruments and to take all actions that such
officer is authorized to perform by the Board or these Bylaws. The Chief
Operating Officer shall have the general powers and duties of management usually
vested in the office of the chief operating officer of a corporation and such
other powers and duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Chief
Operating Officer by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board.

Section 3.9 Chief Corporate Officer.



        Subject to the oversight of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Corporate Officer shall exercise direction and control over the day-to-day
corporate functions of the Corporation. In the case of the death or total and
permanent disability of the Chief Executive Officer and the President, the Chief
Operating Officer or Chief Corporate Officer, in order of rank or seniority,
shall perform all of the duties of such officer, and when so acting shall have
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon such officer,
including the power to sign all instruments and to take all actions that such
officer is authorized to perform by the Board or these Bylaws. The Chief
Corporate Officer shall have the general powers and duties of management usually
vested in the office of chief corporate officer of a corporation and such other
powers and duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Chief Corporate
Officer by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board.

Section 3.10 Chief Medical Officer

        The Chief Medical Officer shall exercise direction and control of the
medical affairs of the Corporation, including the preparation of any medical
related regulatory documents and advising on any medical related matters for the
Corporation. The Chief Medical Officer shall have the general powers and duties
usually vested in the office of the chief medical officer of a corporation and
such other powers and duties as may be assigned by the Chief Executive Officer
or the Board.

Section 3.11 Senior Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Senior
Vice President and Vice President.

        In the case of the death or total and permanent disability of the Chief
Executive Officer and the President, the Chief Operating Officer and the Chief
Corporate Officer, a corporate Senior Executive Vice President, an Executive
Vice President, a Group President, in the order of rank and seniority, shall
perform all of the duties of such officer, and when so acting shall have all the
powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon such officer, including
the power to sign all instruments and to take all actions that such officer is
authorized to perform by the Board or these Bylaws. Each such officer shall have
the general powers and duties usually vested in such office. Each operating
region, division, group or corporate staff function officer shall have the
general powers and duties usually vested in such office. Each such officer shall
have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be
assigned to them respectively by the Chief Executive Officer or the Board.

Section 3.12 Secretary and Assistant Secretaries.

        (a) The Secretary shall (a) attend all sessions of the Board and all
meetings of the stockholders; (b) record and keep, or cause to be kept, all
votes and the minutes of all proceedings in a book or books to be kept for that
purpose at the corporate headquarters of the Corporation, or at such other place
as the Board may from time to time determine; and (c) perform like duties for
the Executive and other committees of the Board, when required. In addition, the
Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the registered office of the
Corporation in the State of Nevada, those documents required to be kept thereat
by Section 5.2 of the Bylaws and Section 78.105 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.
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        (b) The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of meetings of
the stockholders and special meetings of the Board, and shall perform such other
duties as may be assigned by the Board or the Chief Executive Officer, under
whose supervision the Secretary shall be. The Secretary shall keep in safe
custody the seal of the Corporation and affix the same to any instrument
requiring it. When required, the seal shall be attested by the Secretary's; the
Treasurer's or an Assistant Secretary's signature. The Secretary or an Assistant
Secretary hereby is authorized to issue certificates, to which the corporate
seal may be affixed, attesting to the incumbency of officers of this Corporation
or to actions duly taken by the Board, the Executive Committee, any other



committee of the Board or the stockholders.

        (c) The Assistant Secretary or Secretaries, in the order of their
seniority, shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary and
perform such duties as the Chief Executive Officer shall prescribe in the case
of death or total and permanent disability of the Secretary.

Section 3.13 Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers.

        (a) The Treasurer shall deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name,
and to the credit, of the Corporation, with such depositories as may be
determined by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the
Corporation as may be ordered by the Board or permitted by the Chief Executive
Officer or Chief Financial Officer, shall render to the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and directors, whenever they request it, an account of
all transactions and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties
as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws or permitted by the Chief
Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

        (b) The Assistant Treasurer or Treasurers, in the order of their seniority,
shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Treasurer and perform
such duties as the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer shall
prescribe in the case of death or total and permanent disability of the
Treasurer.

Section 3.14 Additional Powers, Seniority and Substitution of Officers.

        In addition to the foregoing powers and duties specifically prescribed for
the respective officers, the Board may by resolution from time to time (a)
impose or confer upon any of the officers such additional duties and powers as
the Board may see fit, (b) determine the order of seniority among the officers,
and/or (c) except as otherwise provided above, provide that in the case of death
or total and permanent disability of any officer or officers, any other officer
or officers shall temporarily or indefinitely assume the duties, powers and
authority of the officer or officers who died or became totally and permanently
disabled. Any such resolution may be final, subject only to further action by
the Board, granting to any of the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman
or Vice Chairman (or Chairmen) such discretion as the Board deems appropriate to
impose or confer additional duties and powers, to determine the order of
seniority among officers and/or to provide for substitution of officers as above
described.
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Section 3.15 Compensation.

        The elected officers of the Corporation shall receive such compensation as
shall be fixed from time to time by the Board or a committee thereof. The
appointed officers of the Corporation shall receive such compensation as shall
be fixed from time to time by the Board or a committee thereof, by the Chief
Executive Officer or by any officer designated by the Board or the Chief
Executive Officer. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, no officer shall be
prohibited from receiving any compensation by reason of the fact that such
officer also is a director of the Corporation.

Section 3.16 Transaction Involving Interest of an Officer.

        In the absence of fraud, no contract or other transaction of the
Corporation shall be affected or invalidated by the fact that any of the
officers of the Corporation is interested in any way in, or connected with any
other party to, such contract or transaction, or are themselves parties to such
contract or transaction; provided, however, that such contract or transaction
complies with Section 78.140 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Each and every
person who is or may become an officer of the Corporation hereby is relieved, to
the extent permitted by law, when acting in good faith, from any liability that
might otherwise exist from contracting with the Corporation for the benefit of
such person or any person in which such person may be interested in any way or



with which such person may be connected in any way.

                                   ARTICLE IV
                         EXECUTIVE AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Section 4.1 Standing Committees.

        (a) The Board shall appoint an Executive Committee, an Audit Committee and
a Compensation Committee, consisting of such number of members as the Board may
designate, consistent with the Articles, these Bylaws and the laws of the State
of Nevada.

        (b) The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise, when the Board is
not in session, all of the powers of the Board in the management of the business
and affairs of the Corporation, but the Executive Committee shall not have the
power to fill vacancies on the Board, to change the membership of or to fill
vacancies in the Executive Committee or any other Committee of the Board, to
adopt, amend or repeal these Bylaws or to declare dividends or other
distributions.

        (c) The Audit Committee shall select and engage, on behalf of the
Corporation and subject to the consent of the stockholders, and fix the
compensation of, a firm of certified public accountants. It shall be the duty of
the firm of certified public accountants, which firm shall report to the Audit
Committee, to audit the books and accounts of the Corporation and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The Audit Committee shall confer with the auditors to
determine, and from time to time shall report to the Board upon, the scope of
the auditing of the books and accounts of the Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries. None of the members of the Audit Committee shall be officers or
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employees of the Corporation. If required by Nevada or federal laws, rules or
regulations, or by the rules or regulations of any exchange on which the
Corporation's shares shall be listed, the Board shall approve a charter for the
Audit Committee and the Audit Committee shall comply with such charter in the
performance of its duties.

        (d) The Compensation Committee shall establish a general compensation
policy for the Corporation's directors and elected officers and shall have
responsibility for approving the compensation of the Corporation's directors,
elected officers and any other senior officers determined by the Compensation
Committee. The Compensation Committee shall have all of the powers of
administration granted to the Compensation Committee under the Corporation's
non-qualified employee benefit plans, including any stock incentive plans,
long-term incentive plans, bonus plans, retirement plans, deferred compensation
plans, stock purchase plans and medical, dental and insurance plans. In
connection therewith, the Compensation Committee shall determine, subject to the
provisions of such plans, the directors, officers and employees of the
Corporation eligible to participate in any of the plans, the extent of such
participation and the terms and conditions under which benefits may be vested,
received or exercised. None of the members of the Compensation Committee shall
be officers or employees of the Corporation. The Compensation and Stock Option
Committee may delegate any or all of its powers of administration under any or
all of the Corporation's non-qualified employee benefit plans to any committee
or entity appointed by the Compensation Committee. If required by any Nevada or
federal laws, rules or regulations, or by the rules or regulations of any
exchange on which the Corporation's shares shall be listed, the Board shall
approve a charter for the Compensation Committee and the Compensation Committee
shall comply with such charter in the performance of its duties.

Section 4.2 Other Committees.

        Subject to the limitations of the Articles, these Bylaws and the laws of
the State of Nevada as to action to be authorized or approved by the
stockholders, or duties not delegable by the Board, any or all of the
responsibilities and powers of the Board may be exercised, and the business and



affairs of this Corporation may be exercised or controlled by or under the
authority of such other committee or committees as may be appointed by the
Board, including, without limitation, a Nominating Committee, an Ethics, Quality
and Compliance Committee and a Corporate Governance Committee. The
responsibilities and/or powers to be exercised by any such committee shall be
designated by the Board.

Section 4.3 Procedures.

        Subject to the limitations of the Articles, these Bylaws and the laws of
the State of Nevada regarding the conduct of business by the Board and its
appointed committees, the Board and any committee created under this Article V
may use any procedures for conducting its business and exercising its powers,
including, without limitation, acting by the unanimous written consent of its
members in the manner set forth in Section 2.14. A majority of any committee
shall constitute a quorum. Notices of meetings shall be provided, may be waived,
in the manner set forth in Section 2.11.
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                                    ARTICLE V
                    CORPORATE RECORDS AND REPORTS--INSPECTION

Section 5.1 Records.

        The Corporation shall maintain adequate and correct accounts, books and
records of its business and properties. All of such books, records and accounts
shall be kept at its corporate headquarters and/or at other locations within or
without the State of Nevada as may be designated by the Board.

Section 5.2 Articles, Bylaws and Stock Ledger.

        The Corporation shall maintain and keep the following documents at its
registered office in the State of Nevada: (a) a certified copy of the Articles
and all amendments thereto; (b) a certified copy of these Bylaws and all
amendments thereto; and (c) the Stock Ledger.

Section 5.3 Inspection.

        Stockholders of the Corporation may inspect books and records of the
Corporation in accordance with Sections 78.105 and 78.257 of the Nevada Revised
Statutes.

Section 5.4 Checks, Drafts, Etc.

        All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other
evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of, or payable to, the
Corporation, shall be signed or endorsed only by such person or persons, and
only in such manner, as shall be authorized from time to time by the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer, the President, the Chief Financial Officer or the
Treasurer.

                                   ARTICLE VI
                              OTHER AUTHORIZATIONS

Section 6.1 Execution of Contracts.

        Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board may authorize any
officer or agent of the corporation to enter into and execute any contract,
document, agreement or instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
Unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent or employee shall have any
power or authority, except in the ordinary course of business, to bind the
Corporation by any contract or engagement, to pledge its credit or to render it
liable for any purpose or in any amount.
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Section 6.2 Dividends or Other Distributions

        From time to time, the Board may declare, and the Corporation may pay,
dividends or other distributions on its outstanding shares in the manner and on
the terms and conditions provided by the laws of the State of Nevada and the
Articles, subject to any contractual restrictions to which the Corporation is
then subject.

                                   ARTICLE VII
                          SHARES AND TRANSFER OF SHARES

Section 7.1 Shares.

        (a) The shares of the capital stock of the Corporation may be represented
by certificates or uncertificated. Each registered holder of shares of capital
stock, upon written request to the Secretary of the Corporation, shall be
provided with a stock certificate representing the number of shares owned by
such holder.

        (b) Certificates for shares shall be in such form as the Board may
designate and shall be numbered and registered as they are issued. Each shall
state the name of the record holder of the shares represented thereby; its
number and date of issuance; the number of shares for which it is issued; the
par value; a statement of the rights, privileges, preferences and restrictions,
if any; a statement as to rights of redemption or conversion, if any; and a
statement of liens or restrictions upon transfer or voting, if any, or,
alternatively, a statement that certificates specifying such matters may be
obtained from the Secretary of the Corporation.

        (c) Every certificate for shares must be signed by the Chief Executive
Officer or the President and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or must be
authenticated by facsimiles of the signatures of the Chief Executive Officer or
the President and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. Before it becomes
effective, every certificate for shares authenticated by a facsimile or a
signature must be countersigned by a transfer agent or transfer clerk, and must
be registered by an incorporated bank or trust company, either domestic or
foreign, as registrar of transfers.

        (d) Even though an officer who signed, or whose facsimile signature has
been written, printed, or stamped on a certificate for shares ceases, by death,
resignation, retirement or otherwise, to be an officer of the Corporation before
the certificate is delivered by the Corporation, the certificate shall be as
valid as though signed by a duly elected, qualified and authorized officer if it
is countersigned by the signature or facsimile signature of a transfer clerk or
transfer agent and registered by an incorporated bank or trust company, as
registrar of transfers.

        (e) Even though a person whose facsimile signature as, or on behalf of, the
transfer agent or transfer clerk has been written, printed or stamped on a
certificate for shares ceases, by death, resignation, or otherwise, to be a
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person authorized to so sign such certificate before the certificate is
delivered by the Corporation, the certificate shall be deemed countersigned by
the facsimile signature of a transfer agent or transfer clerk for purposes of
meeting the requirements of this section.



Section 7.2 Transfer on the Books.

        Upon surrender to the Secretary or transfer agent of the Corporation of a
certificate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper evidence of
succession, assignment or authority to transfer, it shall be the duty of the
Corporation or its transfer agent to issue a new certificate, if requested by
the transferee, to the person entitled thereto, cancel the old certificate and
record the transaction upon its books.

Section 7.3 Lost or Destroyed Certificates.

        The Board may direct, or may authorize the Secretary to direct, a new
certificate or certificates to be issued in place of any certificate or
certificates theretofore issued by the Corporation alleged to have been lost or
destroyed, upon the Secretary's receipt of an affidavit of that fact by the
person requesting the replacement certificate for shares so lost or destroyed.
When authorizing such issue of a new certificate or certificates, the Board or
Secretary may, in its or the Secretary's discretion, and as a condition
precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost or destroyed
certificate or certificates, or such owner's legal representative, to advertise
the same in such manner as it shall require and/or give the Corporation a bond
in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made
against the Corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been
lost or destroyed.

Section 7.4 Transfer Agents and Registrars.

        The Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or the
Secretary may appoint one or more transfer agents or transfer clerks, and one or
more registrars, who may be the same person, and may be the Secretary of the
Corporation, an incorporated bank or trust company or any other person or
entity, either domestic or foreign.

Section 7.5 Fixing Record Date for Dividends, Etc.

        The Board may fix a time, not exceeding 50 days preceding the date fixed
for the payment of any dividend or distribution, or for the allotment of rights,
or when any change or conversion or exchange of shares shall go into effect, as
a record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to receive any
such dividend or distribution, or any such allotment of rights, or to exercise
the rights in respect to any such change, conversion, or exchange of shares,
and, in such case, only stockholders of record on the date so fixed shall be
entitled to receive such dividend, distribution, or allotment of rights, or to
exercise such rights, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any
shares on the books of the Corporation after any record date fixed as aforesaid.
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Section 7.6 Record Ownership.

        The Corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a
person registered as such on the books of the Corporation as the owner of shares
of the Corporation's stock to receive dividends or other distributions and to
vote as such owner, and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other
claim to or interest in such shares on the part of any other person, whether or
not the Corporation shall have express or other notice thereof, except as
otherwise provided by law.

                                  ARTICLE VIII
                              AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

Section 8.1 By Stockholders.



        New or restated bylaws may be adopted, or these Bylaws may be repealed,
amended and/or restated, at any meeting of the stockholders, by the affirmative
vote of the holders of a majority of all outstanding shares voting together and
not by class, except as otherwise provided in Section 2.5.

Section 8.2 By Directors.

        Subject to the right of the stockholders to adopt, amend and/or restate or
repeal these Bylaws, as provided in Section 8.1, the Board may adopt, amend, or
repeal any of these Bylaws, except as otherwise provided in Section 2.5, by the
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the directors. This power may not be delegated
to any committee appointed in accordance with these Bylaws.

Section 8.3 Record of Amendments.

        Whenever an amendment or a new Bylaw is adopted, it shall be copied in the
book of minutes with the original Bylaws, in the appropriate place. If any Bylaw
is repealed, the fact of repeal, with the date of the meeting at which the
repeal was enacted, or written assent was filed, shall be stated in said book.

                                   ARTICLE IX
                    INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 9.1 Indemnification in Actions, Suits or Proceedings other than those by
or in the Right of the Corporation.
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        Any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative (except an action by or in the right
of the Corporation) (a "Proceeding"), by reason of the fact that such person is
or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was
serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation to the
fullest extent permitted by Nevada law against expenses, including attorneys'
fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably
incurred by such person in connection with such Proceeding (collectively,
"Costs"). The termination of any Proceeding by judgment, order, settlement,
conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of
itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a
manner which such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the Corporation, and that, with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, such person had reasonable cause to believe that such person's
conduct was unlawful.

Section 9.2 Indemnification in Actions, Suits or Proceedings by or in the Right
of the Corporation.

        The Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed Proceeding
by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by
reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or
agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation
as a director, officer, employee, or agent of another corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise against Costs incurred by such person
in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit.
Indemnification may not be made for any claim, issue or matter as to which such
person has been adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, after exhaustion
of all appeals therefrom, to be liable to the Corporation or for amounts paid in
settlement to the Corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in
which the action or suit was brought or other court of competent jurisdiction
determines upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case,



the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as
the court deems proper.
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Section 9.3 Indemnification by a Court.

        If a claim under Sections 9.1 or 9.2 is not paid in full by the Corporation
within 30 days after a written claim has been received by the Corporation, the
claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Corporation to
recover the unpaid amount of the claim and, if successful in whole or in part,
the claimant shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting such
claim. It shall be a defense to any such action (other than an action brought to
enforce a claim for Costs incurred in defending any Proceeding in advance of its
final disposition where the required undertaking, if any is required, has been
tendered to the Corporation) that the claimant has failed to meet a standard of
conduct which makes it permissible under Nevada law for the Corporation to
indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed. Neither the failure of the
Corporation (including the Board, independent legal counsel, or the
stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such
action that indemnification of the claimant is permissible in the circumstances
because such claimant has met such standard of conduct, nor an actual
determination by the Corporation (including the Board, independent legal
counsel, or the stockholders) that the claimant has not met such standard of
conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that the
claimant has failed to meet such standard of conduct.

Section 9.4 Expenses Payable in Advance.

        The Corporation shall pay the Costs incurred by any person entitled to
indemnification in defending a Proceeding as such Costs are incurred and in
advance of the final disposition of a Proceeding; provided, however, that the
Corporation shall pay the Costs of such person only upon receipt of an
undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay the amount if it is
ultimately determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that such person is
not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation.

Section 9.5 Nonexclusivity of Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses.

        The right to indemnification and advancement of Costs authorized in this
Article IX or ordered by a court: (a) does not exclude any other rights to which
a person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled
under the Articles of the Corporation or any agreement, vote of stockholders or
disinterested directors or otherwise, for either an action in such person's
official capacity or an action in another capacity while holding such person's
office, except that indemnification, unless ordered by a court pursuant to
Nevada law or the advancement of expenses made pursuant to Section 9.4, may not
be made to or on behalf of any director or officer if a final adjudication
establishes that such person's acts or omissions involved intentional
misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of the law and was material to the
cause of action; and (b) continues for a person who has ceased to be a director,
officer, employee, or agent and inures to the benefit of the heirs, executors
and administrators of such a person.
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Section 9.6 Insurance.

        The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance or make other financial
arrangements on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee
or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the



Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise in accordance with Section
78.752 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

Section 9.7 Certain Definitions.

        (a) For purposes of this Article IX, references to "the Corporation" shall
include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any constituent corporation
(including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a consolidation or
merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would have had power and
authority to indemnify its directors, officers, employees or agents so that any
person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent
corporation or is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation
as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, shall stand in
the same position under the provisions of this Article IX with respect to the
resulting or surviving corporation as such person would have with respect to
such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.

        (b) For purposes of this Article IX, references to "fines" shall include
any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan.

        (c) For purposes of this Article IX, references to "serving at the request
of the Corporation" shall include any service as a director, officer, employee
or agent of the Corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by,
such director, officer, employee or agent with respect to an employee benefit
plan, its participants or beneficiaries;

        (d) For purposes of this Article IX, a person who acted in good faith and
in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the interest of the
participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to
have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation" as
referred to in this Article IX.

        (e) For purposes of this Article IX, the term "Board" shall mean the Board
of the Corporation or, to the extent permitted by the laws of Nevada, as the
same exist or may hereafter be amended, its Executive Committee. On vote of the
Board, the Corporation may assent to the adoption Article IX by any subsidiary,
whether or not wholly owned.

Section 9.8 Indemnification of Witnesses.

        To the extent that any director, officer, employee, or agent of the
Corporation is by reason of such position, or a position held with another
entity at the request of the Corporation, a witness in any action, suit or
proceeding, such person shall be indemnified against all Costs actually and
reasonably incurred by such person or on such person's behalf in connection
therewith.
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Section 9.9 Indemnification Agreements.

        The Corporation may enter into agreements with any director, officer,
employee, or agent of the Corporation providing for indemnification to the full
extent permitted by Nevada law.

Section 9.10 Actions Prior to Adoption of Article IX.

        The rights provided by this Article IX shall be available whether or not
the claim asserted against the director, officer, employee, or agent is based on
matters which antedate the adoption of this Article IX.

Section 9.11 Severability.

        If any provision Article IX shall for any reason be determined to be
invalid, the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby but shall



remain in full force and effect.

                                    ARTICLE X
                                 CORPORATE SEAL

        The corporate seal shall be circular in form and shall have inscribed
thereon the name of the Corporation, the date of its incorporation and the word
"Nevada".

                                   ARTICLE XI
                                 INTERPRETATION

        Reference in these Bylaws to any provision of Nevada law or the Nevada
Revised Statutes shall be deemed to include all amendments thereto and the
effect of the construction and determination of validity thereof by the Nevada
Supreme Court.
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                                NEOGENOMICS, INC
                           2003 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

        Section 1. Purpose. The NeoGenomics, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (the
"Plan") has been established by NeoGenomics, Inc. a Nevada corporation (the
"Company"), effective as of October 14, 2003, to foster and promote the
long-term financial success of the Company and its Subsidiaries and thereby
increase stockholder value. The Plan provides for the Award of equity incentives
to those employees, directors, or officers of, or key advisers or consultants
to, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries who are responsible for or contribute
to the management, growth or success of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

        Section 2. Definitions. For purposes of this Plan, the following terms used
herein shall have the following meanings, unless a different meaning is clearly
required by the context.

        2.1 "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

        2.2 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

        2.3 "Committee" shall have the meaning provided in Section 3 of the Plan.

        2.4 "Common Stock" means the common stock, $0.001 par value, of the
Company.

        2.5 "Deferred Stock Award" means an award of shares of Common Stock
pursuant to Section 10.

        2.6 "Disability" means (a) as it relates to the exercise of an Incentive
Stock Option after termination of employment, a disability within the meaning of
Section 22(e)(3) of the Code, and (b) for all other purposes, shall have the
meaning given that term by the group disability insurance, if any, maintained by
the Company for its employees or otherwise shall mean the complete inability of
the Participant, with or without a reasonable accommodation, to perform his or
her duties with the Company or any Subsidiary on a full-time basis as a result
of physical or mental illness or personal injury he or she has incurred, as
determined by an independent physician selected with the approval of the Company
or any Subsidiary and the Participant.

        2.7 "Effective Date" shall have the meaning provided in Section 26 of the
Plan.

        2.8 "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

        2.9 "Fair Market Value" means, as determined by the Committee, the last
sale price as quoted on a national securities exchange on the trading day
immediately preceding the date for which the determination is being made or, in
the event that no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the reported
closing bid, or if the Common Stock is not quoted on such national securities
exchange, then the average of the closing bid and asked prices on the day
immediately preceding the date for which the determination is being made in the
over-the-counter market as reported by NASDAQ or, if bid and asked prices for
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the Common Stock on such day shall not have been reported through NASDAQ, the
average of the bid and asked prices for such day as furnished by any New York
Stock Exchange member firm regularly making a market in the Common Stock
selected for such purpose by the Board or a committee thereof, or, if none of
the foregoing is applicable, then the fair market value of the Common Stock as
determined in good faith by the Committee in its sole discretion.



        2.10 "Immediate Family" shall have the meaning provided in Section 20 of
the Plan.

        2.11 "Incentive Stock Option" means a stock option granted under the Plan
which is intended to be designated as an "incentive stock option" within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code.

        2.12 "Listing Date" means the first date upon which any security of the
Company is listed (or approved for listing) upon notice of issuance on any
national securities exchange or designated (or approved for designation) upon
notice of issuance as a national market security on an interdealer quotation
system.

        2.13 "Non-Qualified Stock Option" means a stock option granted under the
Plan which is not intended to be an Incentive Stock Option, including any stock
option that provides (as of the time such option is granted) that it will not be
treated as an Incentive Stock Option nor as an option described in Section
423(b) of the Code.

        2.14 "Other Stock-Based Award" means awards (other than Stock Options,
Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock Awards, Stock Bonus Awards, and
Deferred Stock Awards) denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by
reference to, or otherwise based on, or related to, shares of Common Stock and
granted pursuant to Section 11.

        2.15 "Outside Director" means a member of the Board who is not employed by
the Company or any Subsidiary.

        2.16 "Parent Company" means any corporation (other than the Company) in an
unbroken chain of corporations ending with the Company if, at the time of the
granting of the option or other award, each of the corporations other than the
Company owns stock possessing 50% or more of the combined voting power of all
classes of stock in one of the other corporations in the chain.

        2.17 "Participant" shall mean any employee, director or officer of, or key
adviser or consultant to, the Company or any Subsidiary to whom an Award is
granted under the Plan.

        2.18 "Plan Year" means the twelve-month period beginning on January 1 and
ending on December 31; provided, however, the first Plan Year shall be the short
Plan Year beginning on the Effective Date and ending on December 31, 2003.

        2.19 "Stock Appreciation Right" means an award made pursuant to Section 7.

        2.20 "Stock Bonus Award" means an award made pursuant to Section 9.
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        2.21 "Stock Option" means any option to purchase Common Stock granted
pursuant to Section 6.

        2.22 "Subsidiary" means: (i) as it relates to Incentive Stock Options, any
corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations
beginning with the Company if, at the time of the granting of the Stock Option,
each of the corporations (other than the last corporation in the unbroken chain)
owns stock possessing 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all
classes of stock in one of the other corporations in the chain; and (ii) for all
other purposes, a company, domestic or foreign, of which not less than 50% of
the total voting power is held by the Company or by a Subsidiary, whether or not
such company now exists or is hereafter organized or acquired by the Company or
by a Subsidiary .

        2.23 "Term of the Plan" means the period beginning on the Effective Date
and ending on the earlier to occur of (i) the date the Plan is terminated by the
Board in accordance with Section 23 and (ii) the day before the tenth
anniversary of the Effective Date.



        Section 3. Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board or such other committee as may be appointed
by the Board from time to time for the purpose of administering this Plan, or if
no such committee is appointed or acting, the entire Board; provided, however,
that if the Company registers any class of equity security pursuant to Section
13 of the Exchange Act, and if the Plan is to be administered by a committee,
then such committee shall consist of two or more members of the Board, each of
whom shall each qualify as a "non-employee director" within the meaning of Rule
16b-3 of the Exchange Act and also qualify as an "outside director" within the
meaning of Section l62(m) of the Code and regulations pursuant thereto. For
purposes of the Plan, the Board acting in this capacity or the Compensation
Committee described in the preceding sentence shall be referred to as the
"Committee". The Committee shall have the power and authority to grant to
eligible persons pursuant to the terms of the Plan: (1) Stock Options, (2) Stock
Appreciation Rights, (3) Restricted Stock Awards, (4) Stock Bonus Awards, (5)
Deferred Stock Awards, (6) Other Stock-Based Awards, or (7) any combination of
the foregoing (collectively referred to as "Awards").

        The Committee shall have authority in its discretion to interpret the
provisions of the Plan and to decide all questions of fact arising in its
application. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan, the Committee
shall have authority to select the persons to whom Awards shall be made under
the Plan; to determine whether and to what extent Awards shall be made under the
Plan; to determine the types of Award to be made and the amount, size, terms and
conditions of each such Award; to determine the time when the Awards shall be
granted; to determine whether, to what extent and under what circumstances
Common Stock and other amounts payable with respect to an Award under the Plan
shall be deferred either automatically or at the election of the Participant; to
adopt, alter and repeal such administrative rules, guidelines and practices
governing the Plan as it shall from time to time deem advisable; and to make all
other determinations necessary or advisable for the administration and
interpretation of the Plan. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the
contrary, in the event that the Committee determines that it is advisable to
grant Awards which shall not qualify for the exception for performance-based
compensation from the tax deductibility limitations of Section 162(m) of the
Code, the Committee may make such grants or Awards, or may amend the Plan to
provide for such grants or Awards, without satisfying the requirements of
Section 162(m) of the Code.
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        Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee also
shall have authority in its sole discretion to vary the terms of the Plan to the
extent necessary to comply with foreign, federal, state or local law or to meet
the objectives of the Plan. The Committee may, where appropriate, establish one
or more sub-plans for this purpose.

        All decisions made by the Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Plan
shall be final and binding on all persons who participate in the Plan.

        All expenses and liabilities incurred by the Committee in the
administration and interpretation of the Plan shall be borne by the Company. The
Committee may employ attorneys, consultants, accountants or other persons in
connection with the administration and interpretation of the Plan. The Company,
and its officers and directors, shall be entitled to rely upon the advice,
opinions or valuations of any such persons.

        Section 4. Common Stock Subject to the Plan.

        4.1 Share Reserve. Subject to the following provisions of this Section 4
and to such adjustment as may be made pursuant to Section 22, the maximum number
of shares available for issuance under the Plan shall be equal to 2,000,000
shares of Common Stock.; provided that, if the number of issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock of the Company is increased to more than 20,000,000
shares after the effective date of this Plan, the maximum number of shares of
Stock for which Awards may be granted under the Plan shall be increased by ten



percent (10%) of the amount by which such issued and outstanding shares of
Common Stock of the Company exceeds 20,000,000. During the terms of the Awards
under the Plan, the Company shall keep available at all times the number of
shares of Common Stock required to satisfy such Awards.

        4.2 Source of Shares. Such shares may consist in whole or in part of
authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares or any combination thereof as
the Committee may determine. Except as otherwise provided herein, any shares
subject to an option or right granted or awarded under the Plan which for any
reason expires or is terminated unexercised, becomes unexercisable, or is
forfeited or otherwise terminated, surrendered or cancelled as to any shares, or
if any shares are not delivered because an Award under the Plan is settled in
cash or the shares are used to satisfy the applicable tax withholding
obligation, such shares shall not be deemed to have been delivered for purposes
of determining the maximum number of shares of Common Stock available for
issuance under the Plan and shall again become eligible for issuance under the
Plan. If the exercise price of any Stock Option granted under the Plan is
satisfied by tendering shares of Common Stock to the Company (whether by actual
delivery or by attestation and whether or not such surrendered shares were
acquired pursuant to any Award granted under the Plan), only the number of
shares of Common Stock issued net of the shares of Common Stock tendered shall
be deemed delivered for purposes of determining the maximum number of shares of
Common Stock available for issuance under the Plan. No Awards may be granted
following the end of the Term of the Plan.

        4.3 Code Section 162(m) Limitation. The total number of shares of Common
Stock for which Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted to
any employee during any 12 month period shall not exceed 1,000,000 shares in the
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aggregate (as adjusted pursuant to Section 22). The total number of shares of
Common Stock for which Restricted Stock Awards, Deferred Stock Awards, Stock
Bonus Awards and Other Stock-Based Awards that are subject to the attainment of
performance criteria in order to protect against the loss of deductibility under
Section 162(m) of the Code may be granted to any employee during any twelve
month period shall not exceed 1,000,000 shares in the aggregate, subject to
adjustment pursuant to Section 22. This Section 4.3 shall not apply prior to the
Listing Date.

        Section 5. Eligibility to Receive Awards. An Award may be granted to any
employee, director, or officer of, or key adviser or consultant to, the Company
or any Subsidiary, who is responsible for or contributes to the management,
growth or success of the Company or any Subsidiary, provided that bona fide
services shall be rendered by consultants or advisers to the Company or its
Subsidiaries and, unless otherwise approved by the Committee, such services must
not be in connection with the offer and sale of securities in a capital-raising
transaction and must not directly or indirectly promote or maintain a market for
the Company's securities. Subject to the preceding sentence and Section 6.9, the
Committee shall have the sole authority to select the persons to whom an Award
is to be granted hereunder and to determine what type of Award is to be granted
to each such person. No person shall have any right to participate in the Plan.
Any person selected by the Committee for participation during any one period
will not by virtue of such participation have the right to be selected as a
Participant for any other period.

        Section 6. Stock Options. A Stock Option may be an Incentive Stock Option
or a Non-Qualified Stock Option. Only employees of the Company or any Parent
Company or Subsidiary of the Company are eligible to receive Incentive Stock
Options. To the extent that any Stock Option does not qualify as an Incentive
Stock Option, it shall constitute a separate Non-Qualified Stock Option. Stock
Options may be granted alone or in addition to other Awards granted under the
Plan. Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 6.9, the terms and
conditions of each Stock Option granted under the Plan shall be specified by the
Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set forth in a written Stock
Option agreement between the Company and the Participant in such form as the
Committee shall approve from time to time or as may be reasonably required in
view of the terms and conditions approved by the Committee from time to time. No



person shall have any rights under any Stock Option granted under the Plan
unless and until the Company and the person to whom such Stock Option shall have
been granted shall have executed and delivered an agreement expressly granting
the Stock Option to such person and containing provisions setting forth the
terms and conditions of the Stock Option. The Committee shall issue separate
Stock Option agreements for each Non-Qualified Stock Option and Incentive Stock
Option. The terms and conditions of each Incentive Stock Option shall be such
that each Incentive Stock Option issued hereunder shall constitute and shall be
treated as an "incentive stock option" as defined in Section 422 of the Code.
The terms and conditions of each Non-Qualified Stock Option will be such that
each Non-Qualified Stock Option issued hereunder shall not constitute nor be
treated as an "incentive stock option" as defined in Section 422 of the Code or
an option described in Section 423(b) of the Code and will be a "non-qualified
stock option" for federal income tax purposes. The terms and conditions of any
Stock Option granted hereunder need not be identical to those of any other Stock
Option granted hereunder. The Stock Option agreements shall contain in substance
the following terms and conditions and may contain such additional terms and
conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as the Committee shall
deem desirable.
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        6.1 Type of Option. Each Stock Option agreement shall identify the Stock
Option represented thereby as an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified Stock
Option, as the case may be.

        6.2 Option Price. The Incentive Stock Option exercise price shall be fixed
by the Committee but shall in no event be less than 100% (or 110% in the case of
an employee referred to in Section 6.8(ii) below) of the Fair Market Value of
the shares of Common Stock subject to the Incentive Stock Option on the date the
Incentive Stock Option is granted. The Non-Qualified Stock Option exercise price
shall be fixed by the Committee and may be equal to, more than or less than 100%
of the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock subject to the
Non-Qualified Stock Option at the time the Stock Option is granted, but in no
event less than the par value of the Common Stock.

        6.3 Exercise Term. Each Stock Option agreement shall state the period or
periods of time within which the Stock Option may be exercised, in whole or in
part, which shall be such period or periods of time as may be determined by the
Committee, provided that no Stock Option shall be exercisable after ten years
from the date of grant thereof (or, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option
granted to an employee referred to in Section 6.8(ii) below, such term shall in
no event exceed five years from the date on which such Incentive Stock Option is
granted). The Committee shall have the power to permit an acceleration of
previously established exercise upon such circumstances and subject to such
terms and conditions as the Committee deems appropriate.

        6.4 Payment for Shares. A Stock Option shall be deemed to be exercised when
written notice of such exercise has been given to the Company in accordance with
the terms of the Stock Option agreement by the Participant entitled to exercise
the Stock Option and full payment for the shares of Common Stock with respect to
which the Stock Option is exercised has been received by the Company. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit all or part of the payment of the
exercise price to be made, to the extent permitted by applicable statutes and
regulations, either: (i) in cash, by check or wire transfer, or (ii) in any
other form of legal consideration as provided for under the terms of the Stock
Option. No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to any Participant upon
exercise of a Stock Option until the Company receives full payment therefor as
described above. Upon the receipt of notice of exercise and full payment for the
shares of Common Stock, the shares of Common Stock shall be deemed to have been
issued and the Participant shall be entitled to receive such shares of Common
Stock and shall be a stockholder with respect to such shares, and the shares of
Common Stock shall be considered fully paid and nonassessable. However,
Participant shall have no rights as a stockholder prior to such time at which
certificates representing such Common Stock have been delivered to the
Participant. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which



the record date is prior to the date on which the Common Stock is issued, except
as provided in Section 22 of the Plan. Each exercise of a Stock Option shall
reduce, by an equal number, the total number of shares of Common Stock that may
thereafter be purchased under such Stock Option.

        6.5 Rights upon Termination. Except as otherwise set forth in the
Participant's Stock Option agreement, in the event that a Participant's service
with the Company or any Subsidiary, whether as an employee, officer, director,
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adviser or consultant, terminates for any reason, other than death or
Disability, any rights of the Participant under any Stock Option shall
immediately terminate; provided, however, that the Participant (or any successor
or legal representative) shall have the right to exercise the Stock Option to
the extent that the Stock Option was exercisable at the time of termination,
until the earlier of (i) the date that is three months after the effective date
of such termination, or such other date as determined by the Committee in its
sole discretion, or (ii) the expiration of the term of the Stock Option.

        In the event that a Participant's service terminates because such
Participant dies or suffers a Disability prior to the expiration of the Stock
Option and without the Participant's having fully exercised the Stock Option,
the Participant or his or her successor or legal representative shall be fully
vested in the Stock Option and shall have the right to exercise the Stock Option
within the next 12 months following such event, or such other period as
determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, but not later than the
expiration of the term of the Stock Option.

        6.6 Exercise of Unvested Options. The Stock Option agreement may, but need
not, include a provision whereby the Participant may elect at any time before
the Participant's termination to exercise the Stock Option as to any part or all
of the shares of Common Stock subject to the Stock Option prior to the full
vesting of the Stock Option. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
the Committee may provide that if the Stock Option is exercised prior to having
fully vested, shares issued upon such exercise shall remain subject to vesting
at the same rate as under the Stock Option so exercised and shall be subject to
a right, but not an obligation, of repurchase by the Company with respect to all
unvested Shares (including any securities issued with respect to such shares in
accordance with Section 22 of the Plan) or to any other restriction the
Committee determines to be appropriate. For purposes of facilitating the
enforcement of any such right of repurchase, at the request of the Committee,
the Participant shall enter into joint escrow instructions with the Company and
deliver each certificate for his or her unvested shares of Common Stock with a
stock power, duly endorsed in blank. The Company's rights under this Section 6.6
shall be freely assignable, in whole or in part.

        6.7 Re-load Options. Without in any way limiting the authority of the
Committee to make or not to make grants of Stock Options hereunder, the
Committee shall have the authority (but not an obligation) to include as part of
any Stock Option a provision entitling the Participant to a further Stock Option
(a "Re-Load Option") in the event the Participant exercises the original Stock
Option, in whole or in part, by surrendering other shares of Common Stock in
accordance with this Plan and the terms and conditions of the Stock Option. Any
such Re-Load Option shall (i) provide for a number of shares of Common Stock
equal to the number of shares of Common Stock surrendered as part or all of the
exercise price of such Stock Option; (ii) have an expiration date which is the
same as the expiration date of the Stock Option the exercise of which gave rise
to such Re-Load Option; (iii) have an exercise price which is equal to 100% of
the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock subject to the Re-Load Option on the
date of exercise of the original Stock Option and (iii) be fully vested, unless
otherwise set forth in the Re-Load Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
Re-Load Option shall be subject to the same exercise price and term provisions
heretofore described for Stock Options under the Plan.

        Any such Re-Load Option may be an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified
Stock Option, as the Committee may designate at the time of the grant of the
original Stock Option; provided, however, the designation of any Re-Load Option
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as an Incentive Stock Option shall be subject to the maximum annual limitation
on the exercisability of Incentive Stock Options described in Section 422(d) of
the Code (which amount is $100,000 as of the Effective Date). There shall be no
Re-Load Options on a Re-Load Option. Any such Re-Load Option shall be subject to
the availability of sufficient shares of Common Stock under Section 4.1 and the
limitation on the grants of Stock Options under Section 4.3 and shall be subject
to such other terms and conditions as the Committee may determine which are not
inconsistent with the express provisions of the Plan regarding the terms of
Stock Options.

        6.8 Special Incentive Stock Option Rules. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the case of an Incentive Stock Option, each Stock Option agreement shall contain
such other terms, conditions and provisions as the Committee determines
necessary or desirable in order to qualify such Stock Option as an Incentive
Stock Option under the Code including, without limitation, the following:

        (i) To the extent that the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of
the time the Stock Option is granted) of the Common Stock, with respect to which
Incentive Stock Options granted under this Plan (and all other plans of the
Company and its Subsidiaries and Parent Company) become exercisable for the
first time by any person in any calendar year, exceeds maximum annual limitation
described in Section 422(d) of the Code (which amount is $100,000 as of the
Effective Date), such Stock Options shall be treated as Non-Qualified Stock
Options.

        (ii) No Incentive Stock Option shall be granted to any employee if, at the
time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, the employee (by reason of the
attribution rules applicable under Section 424(d) of the Code) owns more than
10% of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any
Parent Company or Subsidiary unless at the time such Incentive Stock Option is
granted the Stock Option exercise price is at least 110% of the Fair Market
Value (determined as of the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted) of the
shares of Common Stock subject to the Incentive Stock Option and such Incentive
Stock Option by its terms is not exercisable after the expiration of five years
from the date of grant.

If an Incentive Stock Option is exercised after the expiration of the exercise
periods that apply for purposes of Section 422 of the Code, such Stock Option
shall thereafter be treated as a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

        Section 7. Stock Appreciation Rights. Stock Appreciation Rights entitle
Participants to increases in the Fair Market Value of shares of Common Stock.
The terms and conditions of each Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan
shall be specified by the Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set
forth in a written agreement between the Company and the Participant in such
form as the Committee shall approve from time to time or as may be reasonably
required in view of the terms and conditions approved by the Committee from time
to time. The agreements shall contain in substance the following terms and
conditions and may contain such additional terms and conditions, not
inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as the Committee shall deem desirable.

        7.1 Award. Stock Appreciation Rights shall entitle the Participant, subject
to such terms and conditions determined by the Committee, to receive upon
exercise thereof an Award equal to all or a portion of the excess of: (i) the
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Fair Market Value of a specified number of shares of Common Stock at the time of
exercise over (ii) a specified price which shall not be less than 100% of the
Fair Market Value of the Common Stock at the time the right is granted or, if
connected with a previously issued Stock Option, not less than 100% of the Fair
Market Value of the Common Stock at the time such Stock Option was granted. Such
amount may be paid by the Company in cash, Common Stock (valued at its then Fair
Market Value) or any combination thereof, as the Committee may determine. Stock
Appreciation Rights may be, but are not required to be, granted in connection
with a previously or contemporaneously granted Stock Option. In the event of the
exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right that is fully or partially settled in
shares of Common Stock, the number of shares reserved for issuance under this
Plan shall be reduced by the number of shares issued upon exercise of the Stock
Appreciation Right.

        7.2 Term. Each agreement shall state the period or periods of time within
which the Stock Appreciation Right may be exercised, in whole or in part,
subject to such terms and conditions prescribed for such purpose by the
Committee, provided that no Stock Appreciation Right shall be exercisable after
ten years from the date of grant thereof. The Committee shall have the power to
permit an acceleration of previously established exercise terms upon such
circumstances and subject to such terms and conditions as the Committee deems
appropriate.

        7.3 Rights upon Termination. Except as otherwise set forth in the
Participant's Stock Appreciation Rights agreement, in the event that a
Participant's service with the Company or any Subsidiary, whether as an
employee, officer, director, adviser or consultant terminates for any reason,
other than death or Disability, any rights of the Participant under any Stock
Appreciation Right shall immediately terminate; provided, however, the
Participant (or any successor or legal representative) shall have the right to
exercise the Stock Appreciation Right to the extent that the Stock Appreciation
Right was exercisable at the time of termination, until the earlier of (i) the
date that is three months after the effective date of such termination, or such
other date as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, or (ii) the
expiration of the term of the Stock Appreciation Right.

        In the event that a Participant's service terminates because such
Participant dies or suffers a Disability prior to the expiration of his or her
Stock Appreciation Right and without having fully exercised his or her Stock
Appreciation Right, the Participant or his or her successor or legal
representative shall be fully vested in the Stock Appreciation Right and shall
have the right to exercise any Stock Appreciation Right within the next 12
months following such event, or such other period as determined by the Committee
in its sole discretion, but not later than the expiration of the Stock
Appreciation Right.

        Section 8. Restricted Stock Awards. Restricted Stock Awards shall consist
of shares of Common Stock restricted against transfer ("Restricted Stock") and
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. The terms and conditions of each
Restricted Stock Award granted under the Plan shall be specified by the
Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set forth in a written agreement
between the Company and the Participant in such form as the Committee shall
approve from time to time or as may be reasonably required in view of the terms
and conditions approved by the Committee from time to time. The agreements shall
contain in substance the following terms and conditions and may contain such
additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as
the Committee shall deem desirable.
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        8.1 Vesting Period. Restricted Stock Awards shall be subject to the
restrictions described in the preceding paragraph over such vesting period as
the Committee determines. To the extent the Committee deems necessary or
appropriate to protect against loss of deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m)
of the Code, Restricted Stock Awards to any Participant may also be subject to



certain conditions with respect to attainment of one or more preestablished
performance objectives which shall relate to corporate, subsidiary, division,
group or unit performance in terms of growth in gross revenue, earnings per
share or ratios of earnings to equity or assets, net profits, stock price,
market share, sales or costs. In order to take into account unforeseen events or
changes in circumstances, such objectives may be adjusted by the Committee in
its sole discretion; provided, to the extent the Committee deems necessary or
appropriate to protect against loss of deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m)
of the Code, such objectives may not be adjusted by the Committee to increase an
Award but only to reduce or eliminate an Award.

        8.2 Restriction upon Transfer. Shares awarded, and the right to vote such
shares and to receive dividends thereon, may not be sold, assigned, transferred,
exchanged, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered, except as herein
provided or as provided in any agreement entered into between the Company and a
Participant in connection with the Plan, during the vesting period applicable to
such shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and except as otherwise provided in
the Plan, the Participant shall have all the other rights of a stockholder
including, but not limited to, the right to receive dividends and the right to
vote such shares, until such time as the Participant disposes of the shares or
forfeits the shares pursuant to the agreement relating to the Restricted Stock
Award.

        8.3 Certificates. Any stock certificate issued in respect of shares awarded
to a Participant shall be registered in the name of the Participant and
deposited with the Company, or its designee, and shall bear the following
legend:

                "The shares of stock represented by this certificate are
                subject to the terms and conditions contained in the
                NEOGENOMICS, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended,
                and a Restricted Stock Award Agreement entered into between
                the registered owner and NEOGENOMICS, INC. Release from such
                terms and conditions shall be obtained only in accordance
                with the provisions of the Plan and Agreement, a copy of
                each of which is on file in the office of the Secretary of
                NEOGENOMICS, INC."

Each Participant, as a condition of any Restricted Stock Award, shall have
delivered a stock power, endorsed in blank, relating to the Common Stock covered
by such Award.

        Section 9. Stock Bonus Awards. Stock Bonus Awards shall consist of awards
of shares of Common Stock. To the extent the Committee deems necessary or
appropriate to protect against the loss of deductibility pursuant to Section
162(m) of the Code, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, grant a Stock
Bonus Award based upon corporate, division, subsidiary, group or unit

                                      -10-

performance in terms of growth in gross revenue, earnings per share or ratios of
earnings to equity or assets, net profits, stock price, market share, sales or
costs or, with respect to Participants not subject to Section 162(m) of the
Code, such other measures or standards determined by the Committee in its
discretion. In order to take into account unforeseen events or changes in
circumstances, such performance objectives may be adjusted; provided, to the
extent the Committee deems necessary or appropriate to protect against loss of
deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Code, such performance
objectives may not be adjusted by the Committee to increase an Award but only to
reduce or eliminate an Award.

The terms and conditions of each Stock Bonus Award granted under the Plan
shall be specified by the Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set
forth in a written agreement between the Company and the Participant in such
form as the Committee shall approve from time to time or as may be reasonably
required in view of the terms and conditions approved by the Committee from time



to time. In addition to any applicable performance goals, shares of Common Stock
subject to a Stock Bonus Award may be: (i) subject to additional restrictions
(including, without limitation, restrictions on transfer) or (ii) granted
directly to a person free of any restrictions, not inconsistent with the terms
of the Plan, as the Committee shall deem desirable.

        Section 10. Deferred Stock Awards. Deferred Stock Awards under the Plan
shall entitle Participants to future payments of shares of Common Stock upon the
expiration of a specified period of time ("Deferral Period") and upon the
satisfaction of certain conditions during the Deferral Period. The terms and
conditions of each Deferred Stock Award granted under the Plan shall be
specified by the Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set forth in a
written agreement between the Company and the Participant in such form as the
Committee shall approve from time to time or as may be reasonably required in
view of the terms and conditions approved by the Committee from time to time.
The agreements shall contain in substance the following terms and conditions and
may contain such additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the
terms of the Plan, as the Committee shall deem desirable.

        10.1 Vesting Period. Upon the expiration of the Deferral Period (or the
Additional Deferral Period referred to in Section 10.2 below, where applicable)
with respect to each Deferred Stock Award and the satisfaction of any other
applicable limitations, terms or conditions, such Deferred Stock Award shall
become vested in accordance with the terms of the agreement relating to the
Deferred Stock Award. To the extent the Committee deems necessary or appropriate
to protect against loss of deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Code,
Deferred Stock Awards to any Participant may also be subject to certain
conditions with respect to attainment of one or more preestablished performance
objectives which shall relate to corporate, subsidiary, division, group or unit
performance in terms of growth in gross revenue, earnings per share or ratios of
earnings to equity or assets, net profits, stock price, market share, sales or
costs. In order to take into account unforeseen events or changes in
circumstances, such performance objectives may be adjusted by the Committee in
its sole discretion; provided, to the extent the Committee deems necessary or
appropriate to protect against loss of deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m)
of the Code, such performance objectives may not be adjusted by the Committee to
increase an Award but only to reduce or eliminate an Award. The Participant
shall not be a stockholder with respect to any shares subject to a Deferred
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Stock Award until such shares vest and are issued to the Participant in
accordance with the terms of the Deferred Stock Award agreement.

        10.2 Additional Deferral Period. A Participant may request to defer (and,
based thereon, the Committee may at any time defer) the receipt of all or any
part of a Deferred Stock Award for an additional specified period or until a
specified event ("Additional Deferral Period"). Except as otherwise agreed to by
the Committee, such request must be made at least one year prior to the
expiration of the Deferral Period for such Deferred Stock Award or part thereof.

        Section 11. Other Stock-Based Awards. Other Stock-Based Awards may be
awarded, subject to limitations under applicable law and this Plan, that are
denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or
otherwise based on, or related to, shares of Common Stock, as deemed by the
Committee to be consistent with the purposes of the Plan, including, without
limitation, purchase rights, convertible or exchangeable debentures, or other
rights convertible into shares of Common Stock and Awards valued by reference to
the value of securities of or the performance of specified Subsidiaries. Other
Stock-Based Awards may be awarded either alone or in addition to or in tandem
with any other Awards under the Plan or any other plan of the Company. The terms
and conditions of each Other Stock-Based Award granted under the Plan shall be
specified by the Committee, in its sole discretion, and shall be set forth in a
written agreement between the Company and the Participant in such form as the
Committee shall approve from time to time or as may be reasonably required in
view of the terms and conditions approved by the Committee from time to time.



        To the extent the Committee deems necessary or appropriate to protect
against loss of deductibility pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Code, Other
Stock-Based Awards to any Participant may also be subject to certain conditions
with respect to attainment of one or more preestablished performance objectives
which shall relate to corporate, subsidiary, division, group or unit performance
in terms of growth in gross revenue, earnings per share or ratio of earnings to
equity or assets, net profits, stock price, market share, sales or costs. In
order to take into account unforeseen events or changes in circumstances, such
performance objectives may be adjusted; provided, to the extent the Committee
deems necessary or appropriate to protect against loss of deductibility pursuant
to Section 162(m) of the Code, such performance objectives may not be adjusted
by the Committee to increase an Award but only to reduce or eliminate an Award.

        Section 12. Loans. The Committee may, in its sole discretion and to further
the purpose of the Plan, provide for loans to persons in connection with all or
any part of an Award under the Plan. Any loan made pursuant to this Section 12
shall be evidenced by a loan agreement, promissory note or other instrument in
such form and which shall contain such terms and conditions (including without
limitation, provisions for interest, payment, schedules, collateral,
forgiveness, acceleration of such loans or parts thereof or acceleration in the
event of termination) as the Committee shall prescribe from time to time.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each loan shall comply with all applicable laws,
regulations and rules of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
and any other governmental agency having jurisdiction.
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        Section 13. Securities Law Requirements. No shares of Common Stock shall be
issued upon the exercise or payment of any Award unless and until:

        (i) The shares of Common Stock underlying the Award have been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), or the Company has
determined that an exemption from the registration requirements under the Act is
available or the registration requirements of the Act do not apply to such
exercise or payment;

        (ii) The Company has determined that all applicable listing requirements of
any stock exchange or quotation system on which the shares of Common Stock are
listed have been satisfied; and

        (iii) The Company has determined that any other applicable provision of
state or Federal law, including without limitation applicable state securities
laws, has been satisfied.

        Section 14. Restrictions on Transfer; Representations of Participant;
Legends. The Committee in its sole discretion may restrict the transferability
of shares until the Common Stock is listed on any United States securities
exchange or traded on NASDAQ or an over-the-counter quotation system in the
United States.

        Regardless of whether the offering and sale of shares of Common Stock has
been registered under the Act or has been registered or qualified under the
securities laws of any state, the Company may impose restrictions upon the sale,
pledge, or other transfer of such shares, including the placement of appropriate
legends on stock certificates, if, in the judgment of the Company and its
counsel, such restrictions are necessary or desirable in order to achieve
compliance with the provisions of the Act, the securities laws of any state, or
any other law. As a condition to the Participant's receipt of shares, the
Company may require the Participant to represent that such shares are being
acquired for investment, and not with a view to the sale or distribution
thereof, except in compliance with the Act, and to make such other
representations as are deemed necessary or appropriate by the Company and its
counsel. Stock certificates evidencing shares acquired pursuant to an
unregistered transaction to which the Act applies shall bear a restrictive
legend substantially in the following form and such other restrictive legends as
are required or deemed advisable under the Plan or the provisions of any
applicable law:



                "The shares represented by this certificate have not been
                registered under the Securities Act of 1993, as amended (the
                "Act"), or qualified under the securities laws of any state.
                These shares have been acquired for investment and not with
                a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution
                thereof, and may not be sold, mortgaged, pledged,
                hypothecated or otherwise transferred without an effective
                registration under the Act and qualification under any
                applicable state securities laws, or without an opinion of
                counsel acceptable to the Company and its counsel that such
                registration or qualification is not required."
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Any determination by the Company and its counsel in connection with any of the
matters set forth in this Section 14 shall be conclusive and binding on all
persons.

        The Company may, but shall not be obligated to, register or qualify the
sale of shares under the Act or any other applicable law.

        Section 15. Single or Multiple Agreements. Multiple forms of Awards or
combinations thereof may be evidenced by a single agreement or multiple
agreements, as determined by the Committee.

        Section 16. Rights of a Stockholder. The recipient of any Award under the
Plan, unless otherwise expressly provided by the Plan, shall have no rights as a
stockholder with respect thereto unless and until shares of Common Stock are
issued to him.

        Section 17. No Right to Continue Employment or Service. Nothing in the Plan
or any instrument executed or Award granted pursuant thereto shall confer upon
any Participant any right to continue to serve the Company, Parent Company or
any Subsidiary in the capacity in effect at the time the Award was granted or
shall affect the right of the Company, Parent Company or any Subsidiary to
terminate (i) the employment of an employee with or without notice and with or
without cause, (ii) the service of a consultant or adviser pursuant to the terms
of such consultant's or adviser's agreement with the Company, Parent Company or
any Subsidiary, if any or (iii) the service of a director pursuant to the Bylaws
of the Company, Parent Company or any Subsidiary and any applicable provisions
of the corporate law of the state in which the Company, Parent Company or any
Subsidiary is incorporated, as the case may be.

        Section 18. Withholding. The Company's obligations hereunder in connection
with any Award shall be subject to applicable foreign, federal, state and local
withholding tax requirements. Foreign, federal, state and local withholding tax
due under the terms of the Plan may be paid in cash or shares of Common Stock
(either through the surrender of already-owned shares of Common Stock that the
Participant has held for the period required to avoid a charge to the Company's
reported earnings or the withholding of shares of Common Stock otherwise
issuable upon the exercise or payment of such Award) having a Fair Market Value
equal to the required withholding and upon such other terms and conditions as
the Committee shall determine; provided, however, the Committee, in its sole
discretion, may require that such taxes be paid in cash; and provided, further,
any election by a Participant subject to Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act to
pay his or her withholding tax in shares of Common Stock shall be subject to and
must comply with Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act.

        Section 19. Indemnification. No member of the Board or the Committee, nor
any officer or employee of the Company or a Subsidiary or Parent Company acting
on behalf of the Board or the Committee, shall be personally liable for any
action, determination or interpretation taken or made in good faith with respect
to the Plan, and all members of the Board or the Committee and each and any
officer or employee of the Company or any Subsidiary or Parent Company acting on
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their behalf shall, to the extent permitted by law, be fully indemnified and
protected by the Company in respect of any such action, determination or
interpretation.

        Section 20. Non-Assignability. No right or benefit hereunder shall in any
manner be subject to the debts, contracts, liabilities or torts of the person
entitled to such right or benefit. No Award under the Plan shall be assignable
or transferable by the Participant except by will, by the laws of descent and
distribution and by such other means as the Committee may approve from time to
time, and all Awards shall be exercisable, during the Participant's lifetime,
only by the Participant.

        However, the Participant, with the approval of the Committee, may transfer
a Non-Qualified Stock Option for no consideration to or for the benefit of the
Participant's Immediate Family (including, without limitation, to a trust for
the benefit of the Participant's Immediate Family or to a partnership or limited
liability company for one or more members of the Participant's Immediate
Family), subject to such limits as the Committee may establish, and the
transferee shall remain subject to all the terms and conditions applicable to
the Non-Qualified Stock Option prior to such transfer. The foregoing right to
transfer a Non-Qualified Stock Option shall apply to the right to consent to
amendments to the Stock Option agreement and, in the discretion of the
Committee, shall also apply to the right to transfer ancillary rights associated
with the Non-Qualified Stock Option. The term "Immediate Family" shall mean the
Participant's spouse, parents, children, stepchildren, adoptive relationships,
sisters, brothers and grandchildren (and, for this purpose, shall also include
the Participant).

        At the request of the Participant and subject to the approval of the
Committee, Common Stock purchased upon exercise of a Non-Qualified Stock Option
may be issued or transferred into the name of the Participant and his or her
spouse jointly with rights of survivorship.

        Except as set forth above or in a Stock Option agreement, any attempted
assignment, sale, transfer, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, hypothecation, or
other disposition of an Award under the Plan contrary to the provisions hereof,
or the levy of any execution, attachment, or similar process upon an Award under
the Plan shall be null and void and without effect.

        Section 21. Nonuniform Determinations. The Committee's determinations under
the Plan (including without limitation determinations of the persons to receive
Awards, the form, amount and timing of such Awards, the terms and provisions of
such Awards and the agreements evidencing same, and the establishment of values
and performance targets) need not be uniform and may be made by it selectively
among persons who receive, or are eligible to receive, Awards under the Plan,
whether or not such persons are similarly situated.

        Section 22. Adjustments. In the event of any change in the outstanding
shares of Common Stock, without the receipt of consideration by the Company, by
reason of a stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split or distribution,
recapitalization, merger, reorganization, reclassification, consolidation,
split-up, spin-off, combination of shares, exchange of shares or other change in
corporate structure affecting the Common Stock and not involving the receipt of
consideration by the Company, the Committee shall make appropriate adjustments
in (a) the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock (i) available for issuance
under the Plan, (ii) for which grants or Awards may be made to any Participant
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or to any group of Participants (e.g., Outside Directors), (iii) which are
available for issuance under Incentive Stock Options, (iv) covered by
outstanding unexercised Awards and grants denominated in shares or units of
Common Stock, (b) the exercise or other applicable price related to outstanding



Awards or grants and (c) the appropriate Fair Market Value and other price
determinations relevant to outstanding Awards or grants and shall make such
other adjustments as may be appropriate under the circumstances; provided, that
the number of shares subject to any Award or grant always shall be a whole
number.

        Section 23. Termination and Amendment. The Board may terminate or amend the
Plan or any portion thereof at any time and the Committee may amend the Plan to
the extent provided in Section 3, without approval of the stockholders of the
Company, unless stockholder approval is required by Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange
Act, applicable stock exchange or NASDAQ or other quotation system rules,
applicable Code provisions, or other applicable laws or regulations. No
amendment, termination or modification of the Plan shall affect any Award
theretofore granted in any material adverse way without the consent of the
recipient.

        Section 24. Severability. If any of the terms or provisions of this Plan,
or Awards made under this Plan, conflict with the requirements of Section 162(m)
or Section 422 of the Code with respect to Awards subject to or governed by
Section 162(m) or Section 422 of the Code, then such terms or provisions shall
be deemed inoperative to the extent they so conflict with the requirements of
Section 162(m) or Section 422 of the Code. With respect to an Incentive Stock
Option, if this Plan does not contain any provision required to be included
herein under Section 422 of the Code (as the same shall be amended from time to
time), such provision shall be deemed to be incorporated herein with the same
force and effect as if such provision had been set out herein. If any provision
of the Plan is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under
any applicable law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision or any other jurisdiction,
and the Plan shall be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction so
as to best give effect to the intent of the Company under the Plan.

        Section 25. Effect on Other Plans. Participation in this Plan shall not
affect an employee's eligibility to participate in any other benefit or
incentive plan of the Company or any Subsidiary and any Awards made pursuant to
this Plan shall not be used in determining the benefits provided under any other
plan of the Company or any Subsidiary unless specifically provided.

        Section 26. Effective Date of the Plan. The Plan shall become effective on
October 14, 2003 (the "Effective Date"), subject to approval of the stockholders
of the Company to the extent required by applicable Code provisions or other
applicable law.

        Section 27. Governing Law. This Plan and all agreements executed in
connection with the Plan shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
the laws of the State of Nevada, without regard to its conflicts of law
doctrine.

        Section 28. Gender and Number. Words denoting the masculine gender shall
include the feminine gender, and words denoting the feminine gender shall
include the masculine gender. Words in the plural shall include the singular,
and the singular shall include the plural.
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        Section 29. Acceleration of Exercisability and Vesting. The Committee shall
have the power to accelerate the time at which an Award may first be exercised
or the time during which an Award or any part thereof will vest in accordance
with the Plan, notwithstanding the provisions in the Award stating the time at
which it may first be exercised or the time during which it will vest.

        Section 30. Modification of Awards. Within the limitations of the Plan and
subject to Sections 22 and 35, the Committee may modify outstanding Awards or
accept the cancellation of outstanding Awards for the granting of new Awards in
substitution therefor. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, except for any
adjustment described in Section 22 or 35, no modification of an Award shall,
without the consent of the Participant, alter or impair any rights or



obligations under any Award previously granted under the Plan in any material
adverse way without the affected Participant's consent. For purposes of the
preceding sentence, any modification to any of the following terms or conditions
of an outstanding unexercised Award or grant shall be deemed to be a material
modification: (i) the number of shares of Common Stock covered by such Award or
grant, (ii) the exercise or other applicable price or Fair Market Value
determination related to such Award or grant, (iii) the period of time within
which the Award or grant vests and is exercisable and the terms and conditions
of such vesting and exercise, (iv) the type of Award or Stock Option, and (v)
the restrictions on transferability of the Award or grant and of any shares of
Common Stock issued in connection with such Award or grant (including the
Company's right of repurchase, if any).

        Section 31. No Strict Construction. No rule of strict construction shall be
applied against the Company, the Committee, or any other person in the
interpretation of any of the terms of the Plan, any agreement executed in
connection with the Plan, any Award granted under the Plan, or any rule,
regulation or procedure established by the Committee.

        Section 32. Successors. This Plan is binding on and will inure to the
benefit of any successor to the Company, whether by way of merger,
consolidation, purchase, or otherwise.

        Section 33. Plan Provisions Control. The terms of the Plan govern all
Awards granted under the Plan, and in no event will the Committee have the power
to grant any Award under the Plan which is contrary to any of the provisions of
the Plan. In the event any provision of any Award granted under the Plan shall
conflict with any term in the Plan, the term in the Plan shall control.

        Section 34. Headings. The headings used in the Plan are for convenience
only, do not constitute a part of the Plan, and shall not be deemed to limit,
characterize, or affect in any way any provisions of the Plan, and all
provisions of the Plan shall be construed as if no captions had been used in the
Plan.

        Section 35. Merger or Asset Sale. In the event of a merger of the Company
with or into another corporation, or the sale of substantially all of the assets
of the Company, any surviving or acquiring entity shall, subject to the approval
of the Board, assume any Awards outstanding under the Plan or substitute
equivalent Awards (including an Award to acquire the same consideration paid to
the stockholders in the Change in Control transaction for those Awards
outstanding under the Plan). In the event any surviving or acquiring entity
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refuses, prior to the completion of such merger or sale, or fails as of the date
of such event to assume such Awards or to substitute equivalent Awards for those
outstanding under the Plan, or if the Board does not approve such assumption or
substitution, then, with respect to all outstanding Awards held by Participants
as of the date of completion of the merger or sale, and notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in the Plan or any Award agreement, (i) the vesting and
exercisability of such Awards shall be accelerated in full (provided such Awards
have not already terminated or expired), and (ii) Participants will be permitted
to surrender for cancellation within sixty (60) days after such merger or sale
any Stock Option or portion of a Stock Option to the extent not yet exercised,
and the Participant will be entitled to receive a cash payment in an amount
equal to the excess, in any, of (x) the greater of the Fair Market Value, on the
date of surrender, of the shares subject to the Option or portion thereof
surrendered over (y) the aggregate exercise price for such shares under the
Option; provided however, that in the case of an Option granted within six (6)
months prior to the date of such merger or sale to any Participant who may be
subject to liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, such Participant
shall be entitled to surrender for cancellation such Participant's Option during
the sixty (60) day period commencing upon the expiration of six (6) months from
the date of grant of any such Stock Option.
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October 15, 2003

Mr. Thomas White
9720 Rocky Point Road
Clarence, NY 14031

VIA FACSIMILE (716 759-6910)

Dear Tom:

On behalf of NeoGenomics, Inc. ("NeoGenomics" or the "Company"), it is my
pleasure to extend this offer of employment to you ("Executive"). If the
following terms are satisfactory, please countersign this letter (the
"Agreement") and return a copy to me at your earliest convenience.

Position:       Chief Executive Officer. In such capacity, you will perform
                such duties and have such responsibilities as may be assigned by
                the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time that are
                normally inherent in such capacities incorporations of similar
                size and character.

StartDate:      October 20, 2003 or such other date that is mutually
                agreed upon by the Company and you.

Term:           Three years from the Start Date, provided that either party may
                cancel this agreement by giving the other party 60 days written
                notice of a termination. In the event that you terminate this
                agreement at anytime during the first year from your Start Date,
                you agree that you will reimburse the Company for your relocation
                costs.

Base Salary:    $100,000/year, payable twice monthly, to start.
                Thereafter, salary increases will be based on performance and
                will occur at the discretion of the compensation committee of the
                Board of Directors.

Bonus:          You will be eligible for an annual bonus based on performance.
                The amount of such bonus shall be based on the available
                resources of the Company and shall be at the discretion of the
                Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Car Allowance:  The parties agree that a significant portion of your
                time will be spent on marketing activities and it is expected
                that you will need to drive approximately 1,500 miles per month
                to perform the duties of your position.
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                As such, the Company agrees to reimburse your automobile expenses
                (inclusive of all fuel and repair expenses) at a per diem rate of
                $500 per month which amount is based on the Federal Government
                standard mileage rate of $0.36/mile for 2003 (established in IRS
                Publication 15). You understand that the Company is treating
                these per diem payments as non-taxable reimbursements under an
                "Accountable Plan" according to IRS Publications 15 and 643, and
                as such any reimbursements above the amount of expense incurred
                must be reported back to the Company and treated as taxable
                income. The Executive therefore agrees that, to the extent it is
                applicable, he will report back to the Company no less frequently
                than quarterly any amounts of per diem reimbursements that exceed
                actual expenses based on the above formulas and such excess will
                be treated as taxable income on your W-2 form.

Benefits:       You will be entitled to participate in all medical and other
                benefits that the company has established for executive officers
                of the Company, including, but not limited to reimbursement of



                100% of any health insurance premium for the Executive in
                accordance with the Company's policy for such reimbursement.

Relocation:     The Company will reimburse you for all reasonable
                out-of-pocket expenses associated with a van line move to the
                Fort Myers, FL area up to a maximum of $15,000 or such other
                amount mutually agreed upon by the Company. Such allowance will
                include airfare and accommodations for you and your wife for two
                house hunting trips to Fort Myers, FL. You agree to use your best
                efforts to relocate your primary residence to the Fort Myers area
                not later than December 31, 2003.

Vacation:       After completing three months of employment, you will be
                eligible for 4 weeks of paid vacation/year, which will accrue on
                a pro-rata basis throughout the year. Unused vacation in any
                given year will not be carried over for more than 30 days into
                the subsequent fiscal year.

StockOptions:   Upon your Start Date, you will be granted stock options
                to purchase 900,000 shares of NeoGenomics's common stock at an
                exercise price equivalent to the average closing bid price per
                share at which NeoGenomics stock was quoted on the NASDAQ
                Bulletin Board for the five trading days prior to your Start
                Date. The grant of such options will be made pursuant to the
                Company Stock Option Plan and will be evidenced by a separate
                Option Agreement, which the Company will execute with you within
                60 days of your Start Date. So long as you remained employed by
                the Company, such options will have a ten-year term from the
                grant date and will vest according to the following schedule:

                Time-Based Vesting
                       75,000    on your Start Date;
                      100,000    on the first anniversary of your Start Date;
                      100,000    on the second anniversary of your Start Date;
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                      100,000    on the third anniversary of your Start Date;

                Performance-Based Vesting
                      125,000    when the Company reaches $2.5 million of
                                 consolidated revenue for the preceding twelve months;

                      125,000    when the Company reaches $5.0 million of
                                 consolidated revenue for the preceding twelve months;

                      125,000    when the Company's stock maintains an average
                                 closing bid price (as quoted on NASDAQ Bulletin
                                 Board) of $0.50/share over the previous 30 trading days.

                      150,000    when the Company's stock maintains an average
                                 closing bid price (as quoted on NASDAQ Bulletin
                                 Board) of $1.00/share over the previous 30 trading days.

                The Company agrees that it will grant to you the maximum number
                of Incentive Stock Options ("ISO's") available under current SEC
                guidelines and that the remainder, if any, will be in the form of
                non-qualified stock options.

Termination
Without Cause:  If the Company terminates you without "Cause" for any
                reason during the Term or any extension thereof, then the Company
                agrees that as severance it will continue to pay you your Base
                Salary and maintain your employee benefits for a period that is
                equal to one month for every full year of your employment by the
                Company (subject to a minimum of two months and a maximum of six
                months), beginning as of the date of your termination. In



                addition, if such termination without cause shall occur at
                anytime after twelve months from your start date, than the pro
                rata portion of any unvested options up until the date of
                termination that are due to vest in the year of termination shall
                vest. For the purposes of this letter agreement, the Company
                shall have "Cause" to terminate your employment hereunder upon:

                (i) the willful (or grossly negligent) and continued failure by
                you to substantially perform your duties as CEO (other than any
                such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental
                illness) for a period of ten days after demand for substantial
                performance is delivered in writing by the Company that
                specifically identifies the manner in which the Company believes
                you have not substantially performed your duties; or

                (ii) the active participation by you in an act or series of acts
                of willful malfeasance or gross misconduct, recklessness or gross
                negligence (including, without limitation, any action that
                results in your conviction of or pleading guilty to any
                misdemeanor or regulatory sanction placed upon you) which a
                reasonable person would expect to have a potentially damaging or
                detrimental effect on the Company; or

                (iii) your being convicted of, or pleading guilty to, a felony.
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                You acknowledge and agree that any and all payments to which you
                are entitled under this Section are conditioned upon and subject
                to your execution of a general waiver and release, in such
                reasonable form as counsel for each of the Company and you shall
                agree upon, of all claims you have or may have against the
                Company.

Confidentiality:     You shall not, during or at any time after the term
                of employment, disclose to any person, corporation or other
                entity for any purpose whatsoever any information disclosed to
                you or known by you as a consequence of your employment by the
                Company and not generally known in the industry concerning the
                business of the Company (as now or hereafter constituted or
                contemplated), including, but not limited to, such information as
                shall pertain to the prospects, plans, financial condition,
                policies, business methods, products, customers, employees and
                agents of the Company, nor shall you directly or indirectly make
                use of any such information for your purposes or for the benefit
                of any other person, corporation or entity. You also shall not,
                during and at any time prior to two years after termination of
                your employment, directly or indirectly, on behalf of any trade
                or business that is competitive with the business of the Company,
                as it then exists, aid or endeavor to solicit or induce then
                remaining employees of the Company to leave their employment with
                the Company in order to accept employment with another person or
                entity or then customers of the Company to purchase products or
                services then being sold or offered by the Company from another
                person or entity. Upon any violation of the covenants set forth
                in this paragraph, the Company shall be entitled to preliminary
                and permanent injunctive relief, with or without an allowance for
                damages, as well as an equitable accounting of all earnings,
                profits and other benefits arising from such violation, which
                rights shall be cumulative and in addition to any and all other
                rights and remedies to which the Company may be entitled.

Non-Competition:     You agree that your Option Agreement will contain a
                non-compete clause covering the 24 months after your employment
                with the Company. Such non-compete clause will be limited only to
                working with companies in a similar line of business as the



                Company's in the markets in which the Company is operating at the
                time of your termination.

Executive's
Representations:     You represent and warrant that nothing in your past
                legal and/or work experiences, which if became broadly known in
                the marketplace, would impair your ability to serve as the CEO of
                a public company or materially damage your credibility with
                public shareholders. You further represent and warrant that,
                prior to accepting this offer of employment, you have disclosed
                all material information about your past legal and work
                experiences that would be required to be disclosed on a Directors
                and Officers's questionnaire for the purpose of determining what
                disclosures, if any, will need to be made with the SEC. Prior to
                the Company's next public filing, you also agree to fill out a
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                Director's and Officer's questionnaire in form and substance
                satisfactory to the Company's counsel.

Miscellaneous:  (i) This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and
                understandings between the parties and may not be modified or
                terminated orally. No modification or attempted waiver will be
                valid unless in writing and signed by the party against whom the
                same is sought to be enforced.

                (ii) The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable,
                and if any of them is declared invalid and/or unenforceable by a
                court of competent jurisdiction or an arbitrator, the remaining
                provisions shall not be affected.

                (iii)If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of
                the restrictions against disclosure of Confidential Information,
                competition and/or solicitation contained in this Agreement are
                invalid in whole or in part due to over breadth, whether
                geographically, temporally, or otherwise, such court is
                specifically authorized and requested to reform such provision by
                modifying it to the smallest extent necessary to render it valid
                and enforceable, and to enforce the provision as modified.

                (iv) This Agreement is the joint product of the Company and you
                and each provision hereof has been subject to the mutual
                consultation, negotiation and agreement of the Company and you
                and shall not be construed for or against either party hereto.

                (v) This Agreement will be governed by, and construed in
                accordance with the provisions of the law of the State of
                Florida, without reference to provisions that refer a matter to
                the law of any other jurisdiction. Each party hereto hereby
                irrevocably submits itself to the exclusive personal jurisdiction
                of the federal and state courts sitting in Florida; accordingly,
                any matters involving the Company and the Executive with respect
                to this Agreement may be adjudicated only in a federal or state
                court sitting in Florida.

                (vi) This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, and by fax,
                each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if
                the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

                (vii) This Agreement supercedes any prior written or verbal
                agreements that you might have with the Company.
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We are  excited  about  having you on our team.  We believe  your skill set will
allow you to be an immediate  and  significant  contributor  to our cause and we
look forward to working with you.

Warmest Regards,

Michael T. Dent, M.D.
President

Agreed and Accepted:

_________________________Date______
Thomas White



Exhibit 31.1
                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

        I, Thomas H. White, certify that:

        1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-QSB of NeoGenomics,
Inc.;

        2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly
report;

        3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the period presented in this quarterly report;

        4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

                a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
                   material information relating to the registrant, including its
                   consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
                   those entities, particularly during the period in which this
                   quarterly report is being prepared;

                b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure
                   controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the
                   filing date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

                c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the
                   effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on
                   our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

        5. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

                a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
                   internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's
                   ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
                   and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
                   weaknesses in internal controls; and

                b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
                   other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
                   internal controls; and

        6. I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

   Date:   November 14, 2003                          /s/ Thomas H. White
                                                          Thomas H. White
                                                          Chief Executive and
                                                          Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of NeoGenomics,  Inc. (the "Company") on
Form  10-QSB  for the  period  ending  September  30,  2003 as  filed  with  the
Securities and Exchange  Commission on the date hereof (the "Periodic  Report"),
I, Thomas H. White, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

     (1)  The  Periodic  Report  fully  complies  with the  requirements  of the
          Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

     (2)  The information  contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents,  in
          all  material  respects,   the  financial  condition  and  results  of
          operations of the Company.

    Date:   November 14, 2003                        /s/ Thomas H. White
                                                         Thomas H. White
                                                         Chief Executive and
                                                         Principal Financial Officer


